Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

Penallta House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mynach, c A E R P H' .'. LY

Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG SO BWRDEISTIREE SIRGL
%E RFFILY

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud &'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Sharon Hughes
(Rhif Ffon: 01443 864281 Ebost: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: 22 Mehefin 2023

| bwy bynnag a fynno wybod,

Cynhelir cyfarfod aml-leoliad o'r Cyd-bwyllgor Craffu yn Nhy Penallta, a thrwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd
Mercher, 28ain Mehefin, 2023 am 5.00 pm i ystyried y materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. Gall
Cynghorwyr ac aelodau'r cyhoedd sy’n dymuno siarad ar unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i'r
Cadeirydd. Mae hefyd croesoi chi ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, mae angen o leiaf 3 diwrnod
gwaith o rybudd os byddwch chi'n dymuno gwneud y naill neu'r llall. Bydd gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd
yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais.

Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhy Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: https://civico.net/caerphilly

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw a bydd recordiad ar gael i'w weld drwy wefan y Cyngor, ac
eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr
unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb drwy wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

A greener place Man gwyrddach

s AT = =l

a‘
ey “o(((\

I

G
allweh oheby mewn unrhyw iaith



https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffir Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol &
Deddf Liywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr
a Swyddogion.

| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol:-

3 Map Llwybr i Hysbysu Ein Strategaeth Adnoddau a Gwastraff.

Cylchrediad:

Cynghorwyr M.A. Adams, Mrs E.M. Aldworth, C. Bishop, A. Broughton-Pettit, M. Chacon-Dawson,

R. Chapman, Mrs P. Cook, D. Cushing, C.J. Cuss, D.T. Davies, N. Dix, G. Ead, C. Elsbury, G. Enright,
K. Etheridge, M. Evans, A. Farina-Childs, Mrs C. Forehead, A. Gair, C.J. Gordon, D.C. Harse, T. Heron,
A. Hussey, D. Ingram-Jones, M.P. James, L. Jeremiah, G. Johnston, S. Kent, A. Leonard, C.P. Mann,
A. McConnell, B. Miles, B. Owen, T. Parry, L. Phipps, M. Powell, D.W.R. Preece, Mrs D. Price,

H. Pritchard, J.A. Pritchard, J. Rao, J. Reed, J.E. Roberts, S. Skivens, J. Taylor, C. Thomas,

A. Whitcombe, L.G. Whittle, S. Williams, W. Williams, J. Winslade, K. Woodland a C. Wright

A Swyddogion Priodol

SUT FYDDWN YN DERNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy'n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwiyng nghofnodion y cyfarfod
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’rbarnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys
manyliony siaradwyr argael i’r cyhoedd ar wefany Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy n ymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.

Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas &’rwybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawli gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’rhawligwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’rmoddy mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael eibrosesu.

Am wybodaeth bellach arsutrydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwye-bostio griffd2 @caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch
01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 28™ JUNE 2023

SUBJECT: A ROUTEMAP TO INFORM OUR RESOURCE AND WASTE
STRATEGY
REPORTBY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT -

11 To seek the views of Scrutiny Committee on the Council’s draft Routemap that sets
out the principles of an emerging waste strategy in advance of it being presented to
Cabinet.

1.2 To seek the views of Members on the proposed immediate interventions to improve
recycling performance in Caerphilly.

1.3 To set out a timeframe and associated milestones for Member engagement and
scrutiny in developing the Council’'s Resource and Waste Strategy.

2. SUMMARY

2.1  Weare globally in a climate emergency and members are fully aware and committed
to doing all the Authority can, to reduce the impact of climate change, declaring a
climate emergencyin 2019 and pledging to become net zero by 2030.

2.2 Unsustainable consumption of precious resource and waste disposal has a significant
impact on our environment and cannot be decoupled from its impact on our climate.
Taking steps to reduce consumption and move away from traditional linear resource
models of make, buy, dispose, to a sustainable circular model. As we transition to a
Circular Economy, precious resources are kept in use for longer, maximising material
guality and offering social and economic opportunities.

2.3 As a public body we will ensure we work with our communities to protect the long-term
impact of our decisions in line with the Well-Being and Future Generations Act (2015)
and the Environment Act (2021). It is clear we cannot make the required step changes
alone and a collective effort from residents, the workforce and the wider community
will be essential to reduce consumption and improve waste and recycling in Caerphilly.
A community education plan will be developed.

2.4 Wewill be guided by the Welsh National Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste (2010)
and the Beyond Recycling - A Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality

Page 1



2.5

(2021) as well as the forthcoming Workplace Recycling Regulations. The Welsh
Government has set an overall zero waste target by 2050 and challenging recycling
targets for councils in the interim period. These are statutory targets and an Authority
can be fined if they are not achieved. The current target of 64 percent is already in
place and stretches further to 70 percent from next year (2024-25). The recycling rate
in Caerphilly, was 59.70 percent in 2021-22 and projected at 60.7% for 2022/23 which
is well below the levels required to achieve the current and future targets.
Consequently, the Authority continues to be at risk of significant fines. Dialogue with
the Minister for Climate Change and senior Welsh Government officials has led to the
development of a Resource and Waste Route Map to address the performance of the
Authority.

The Route Map sets out the plan to ensure Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory
performance targets, whilst being realistic about the timescales and resources required
to meet these ambitions. It has been developed in line with the waste hierarchy (Image
1), supporting the principles of waste prevention and minimisation, supporting re-use,
recycling and finally residual recovery and landfill for items not suitable for re-use or
recycling.

Image 1 — Waste Hierarchy

2.6

2.7

The Waste Hierarchy

Stages Includes

Using less material in

. design and manufacture.
Prevention Keeping products for
longer. Using less
hazardous materials.

Checking, cleaning, repairing,

Preparing for re-use refurbishing, whole items or spare

parts.

Turning waste into a new substance
&> orproduct. Includes composting if it
meets quality protocols.

Oth Including anaerobic digestion, incineration with
er energy recovery, gasification and pyrolysis which
recovery produce energy (fuels, heat, etc.) and materials

from waste; some backfilling operations.

Disposal &———>  Landfill and incineration without energy recovery.

In developing the route map a number of early interventions for the period 2023-
2025, have been identified. Collectively, it is anticipated these will contribute to an
initial uplift in recycling performance starting the journey for long term change.

The route map builds upon previous work and sets out the long-term plan to ensure
Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory performancetargets. It sets out the anticipated

Page 2



3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

timescales and resources required to deliver a high-quality service that maximises
material quality and supports the transition to a Circular Economy offering social and
economic opportunities.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Through critical questioning, Members scrutinize the principles of the draft Routemap.

To consider and offer comments regarding the proposed early interventions,
anticipated to increase current recycling performance, along with the proposal to
establish a specific reserve of £2.347m funded from uncommitted capital earmarked
reserves.

To consider the proposed Member task and finish group to assistin the development
and delivery of the draft Routemap and associated Strategy thereafter.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Council pledged to become net zero by 2030, reducing consumption and
decarbonising the waste and recycling services, is a key part of reaching this pledge.

The Route Map sets out the strategic direction to reduce waste and exceed Welsh
Government statutory recycling targets, including short term interventions aimed at
increasing performance by 2025-26.

The Authority is at risk of circa £2m per annum fines for not reaching statutory recycling
targets, the Minister previously took the decision not to fine Caerphilly subjectto a root
and branch review and to take actions to meet its targets. The Resources and Waste
Route Map sets out the long-term ambitions from which the new strategy will be
developed and provides evidence to the Minister of Caerphilly's commitment to make
change.

THE REPORT

In responding to the Climate emergency, Caerphilly has pledged to become net zero
by 2030. Addressing consumption and decarbonising the waste service is a key
component of this challenge.

The Welsh Government, Towards Zero Waste strategy (2010), set out a series of
challenging recycling targets for Local Authorities and through the Waste (Wales)
Measure (2010), made the targets from 2012-13 and beyond, statutory. This status
allows Welsh Government to levy financial penalties against Council’s that fail to
achieve them. The statutory targets are weight based and have increased gradually
over time. These are outlined below:

Page 3



5.3

54

Recycling Rate (%)

Table One: Welsh Government Recycling Targets 2010 - 2025

201012 |12/13 | 15/16 | 19/20 | 24/25
Min. levels of reuse & |40% 52% 58% 64% 70%
recycling/lcomposting (or
AD)
Min. proportion of | 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%
reuse/recycling/composting
from source separation*
Max. level of landfill - - - 10% 5%
Max. level of energy from | - - 42% 36% 30%
waste
Min. levels of preparing for | - 0.4% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0%
reuse (excluding Waste
Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE))

Caerphilly has historically performed well against these targets, achieving 66.7 percent
in 2017-18, significantly higher than the then target of 58 percent. However, over the
last three years recycling performance has declined and since 2019-20 has performed
below the 64 percent target. Caerphilly’s recycling performance is outlined below.

Graph One Caerphilly Recycling Performance and Statutory targets

Recycling Trends

S8k

O7de ST.61%
55y S0 ST6

65 50%

61.90%

5. 60%

32,345

09 200910 20010/11 2011/12 2002/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/1F 201

BE.TON

Bd%

65 10%

Financial Year

Gl.B2%

J— Al
59.58%

FI18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/23 202223 2023/24 202425

In the current national Welsh Government waste strategy, Beyond Recycling - A
Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality (2021), the Welsh

Page 4




Government has stated they will work with Local Authorities and other key partners to
develop further future recycling targets in line with their pathway to zero waste, with
the ultimate aim of achieving 100 percent recycling by 2050. Welsh Government
indicate that they will put in place further minimum statutory recycling targets for Local
Authorities beyond 2025, potentially at a level of 80 percent by 2033.

55 The 2021/22 recycling level 59.7 percent and the projected level of 60.7% for 2022/23
are well below the levels required to achieve the 70 percent statutory target by next
year (2024-25) and the Authority is at risk of significant fines. Decisions to fine an
Authority are considered on its own merits and the Minister for Climate Change, took
the decision for the period 2019-20, not to fine Caerphilly, subjectto a root and branch
review of the services and a commitment to take action.

5.6 In reviewing performance and seeking to address the issues, the following challenges
have been identified:

Table 2 Key Challenges

Evidence (2021-
o 22 performance .
Challenge -g Y efficiency Opportunity
2 | O | review)
o | X
¥ | T
¢ Residents in 368kg/hh/yr which
AR 4 Caerphilly are is 91kg/hh/yr
2N producing 7 v higher than the cRoer?:Lfri tion overall
comparatively more national average P
— residual waste of 277kg/hh/yr for
2022/2023.
There are high waste Compositional
arisings at Household analysis confirms
Recycling  Centres that more than
(HRCs), especially half, 58.5 percent
residual waste. v of the residual
kerbside stream
contained material
that could be
recycled, using
existing services.
Material Reuse at Reported dry
Household Recycling reuse for 2021/22
/\ Centres (HRCs) has was 250.22 tonne, | Maximise reuse
been historically low which is 167.84 | opportunities to
\ / but a reuse shop at v | tonnes less than | move towards a
Penallta was opened the national | Circular Economy in
Reuse in October 2022 average of 418.06 | Wales
tonne.

Page 5




o
&

Recycle

There are high levels
of contamination in
the existing co-
mingled kerbside
collection of
recyclable material

20-23 percent of
all waste collected
at the kerbside for
recycling is not

able to be
processed as
recycling. This
consists of
untargeted

materials e.g

Tetrapak and
contaminants e.g

Improve material
quality to move
towards a Circular
Economyin Wales.

food waste

HRC on site recycling .

yields are low Reliance on lrrgf;gl\llr'%g g}?erH%%
sec_ondary sort of site through a user
residual waste

containers which
is costly and over
recent years
recovery rates
have declined.

friendly,  recycling
first provision with
opportunities to
maximise reuse

o

Recover

Caerphilly has the
highest quantity
residual waste per
person in Wales

368kg/hh/yr which
is 91kg/hh/yr
higher than the
national average
of 277kg/hhl/yr for
2022/2023

Reduce overall
residual waste

There are high levels
of recyclable material
in the residual
stream.

Compositional

analysis confirms
that more than
half, 58.5 percent
of the residual
kerbside stream
contained material
that could be
recycled, using
existing services.

Move materials from
residual to recycling
streams

There are high levels
of food waste in the
residual stream.

Highest
percentage of
recyclable waste
in the residual bin
was food, 30.9
percent

Reducing avoidable
food waste and
moving food waste
from residual bin to
existing food waste
service.

Infrastructure

The HRC network is
under pressure and
access to the Trehir
site is challenging

Ensuring user
friendly, modern,
efficient HRC
provision is

important to support

Page 6




and requires a long-
term investment plan.

wider service
changes

The current Waste
Transfer Station at

The future Resource
and Waste strategy

Full Moon requires cannot be
significant investment considered in
and there are isolation, developing
concerns about compliant, efficient
suitability/capacity at and effective
this site for future v v infrastructure  that
requirements supports a safe

working
environment and is
suitable for  our
environmental
aspirations must be
delivered alongside
the future strategy.

5.7 The Routemap (Appendix 1) builds on previous work and sets out the long-term plan to
ensure Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory performance targets. It sets out the
anticipated timescales and resources required to deliver a high quality service that
maximises material quality and supports the transition to a Circular Economy offering
social and economic opportunities.

Page 7



5.8
been set:

Draft Route Map to a Net Zero Caerphilly County Borough

Uhtra Lovw
Erniesian
Vehacles

-l

Indfrastructure

® <t

Food Waste
Campaign %

Commaunity
Recyding

A

Minirmize
Landiil

Tawards Net
Zera 2030

&

Table Two: Resource and Waste Route Map Objectives

To link to Waste Hierarchy, the following key objectives and associated actions have

Objective One Objective Two Objective Three | Objective Four
Prevention Reuse Recycling Recovery

Reduce the overall waste | Maximise repair and | Increase quality and | Optimise contribution
arisings reuse proportion of recycled | to renewable energy

material

e Promote minimisation
messages alongside
targeted campaigns

e Develop and promote a
network of library of
things

e Reduce use of single
use items including
plastic and encourage
others to follow

e Develop and promote
home composting

e Expand reuse at HRC
including making it
easy to donate items

e Promote network of
repair and reuse

e Increase opportunities
for ~community to
recycle e.g. separate
litter and pop up events

¢ Increase participation
in food waste

e Develop HRC to
capture as  much
recycling as possible

¢ Introduce pre-sort
requirements at HRC

e Reduce residual
waste arisings sent
to recovery through
residual
capacity/frequency
reductions

e Review the garden
waste  collection
service

e Enhance recovery
of methane from
organic waste

Page 8




Introduce HRC booking
system — subject to trial
and positive outcomes

Work together with
wider public sector to
tackle hard to recycle

Optimise
collections and
move to ultra-low

e Support Extended streams
Producer Responsibility e Expand trade recycling | o
and Deposit Return collections to comply to landfill
Scheme with new legislation
implementation to e Improve HRC
comply  with new operations
legislation e Expand the range of

materials collected for
recycling at HRCs and
the kerbside, to further
improve performance
and meet future
legislative
requirements

emission vehicles
Reduce waste sent

Objective Five — Helping our residents.

Wide ranging communication, engagement and behavioural campaign
Digitalise the service making it as easy as possible for residents to engage whilst maximising service
efficiencies by providing robust performance data
Clear, consistent messaging and signposting
Making desired behaviours as easy as possible
Prepare a community education programme

5.9

5.10

To support the development of the route map, a transformation programme will be
mobilised consisting of five “pillar projects” and five “enabling themes”. Each project
and theme will be delivered by project teams.

Pillar projects

Household Recycling Centres — There are six HRCs managing circa 22,000 tonnes
of material. A full review of sites will be undertaken, to ensure they are fit for purpose,
increasing re-use and recycling opportunities and reducing residual waste. This will
include a review of future site provision, developing a business case for change and
implementing the recommended changes.

Kerbside Dry Recycling — Undertake a review of kerbside recycling to improve the
capture and quality of material collected. Using best practice and taking an evidence-
based approach, this pillar project will utilise data gathering and modelling to inform
the business case for the future service and will also include the mobilisation of any
service changes.

Kerbside Organic Recycling — Promote and improve existing service offers for
organic kerbside collection including increasing food waste participation and
developing long term plans for garden waste.

Kerbside Residual — Kerbside residual waste capacity and frequency will be
reviewed. A detailed Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken to assistin the
development of support services to assist any future changes.

Page 9




5.11

5.12

Trade Waste Services - This project pillar will seek to meet the new regulations for
business, third and public sector organisations across the county borough by
mobilising trade waste services that include the separate collection of in scope
recyclable materials.

The Enabling themes will run across all five pillars and support the delivery of the
transformation route map.

Communication and Engagement - Following stakeholder mapping, a detailed,
comprehensive and multipronged communication and engagement plan will be
developed to support the delivery of the strategy. This enabling stream will permeate
across the whole programme. Behavioural insight, participation mapping and nudge
theory will form the foundation for the various campaigns and they will adapt and
evolve as we move through the stages of the route map.

Workforce Engagement - The workforce is a key enabler to the overall success of
this new approach. These changes will directly impact them and should not be
underestimated. This workstream will support ongoing staff engagement, staff training,
workforce consultation, health and safety and the development of new policies. This
will include engagement with the workforce and their Trade Unions throughout.

Infrastructure - Building upon previous work undertaken, develop and deliver a
comprehensive infrastructure strategy that supports the strategy. This will include the
consideration of a Waste Transfer Station, depot requirements as well as a long-term
plan for HRC provision.

UltraLow Emission - Develop a strategy to deliver long term aspirations for an ultra-
low emission fleet including procurement and required infrastructure.

Digital Offer — In line with the Council’s corporate Customer and Digital strategy, the
digital capability of the service is essential to drive efficiencies and to provide end to
end service information to help monitor, measure and review the service continually to
ensure it meets citizen requirements. Digital deliverables include: route optimisation,
front end systems and in cab devices and this work will seek to maximise opportunities
to work smarter. This vital data will form a key element in understanding community
behaviour changes at a hyper local level.

In developing the Route Map, a number of priority interventions for the period 2023-
2025, have been identified, some of these are anticipated to increase recycling
performance in the short term which prompts the beginning of the journey for long term
change.

Table Three, Priority Interventions to increase recycling for delivery between 2023-
2025

Pillar / Enabling | Activity Projected
theme Percentage
point

increase

Pillar 1, HRC | Implement recommendations from the recent | 1%
provision WRAP observational study in relation to signage
and site layout, to move focus to recycling rather
than waste disposal.

Page 10



Introduce recycling pre-sort requirement across the
HRC network. This will require site users to bring
waste to the site segregated into its various material
fractions.

Improve customer engagement across the Network
through the introduction of additional customer
trained operatives on site.

Introduce a trial booking system on one site (Trehir),
followed by a roll out to the remaining sites if the
trial proves successful. It is proposed that the trial is
undertaken at Trehir due to it being the busiest site
with the highest concentration of population and the
options to reassign to an alternate site will be
lessened.

Pillar 2, Kerbside
Dry Recycling

A widespread informational campaign will be
launched, supported by WRAP’s well established
“‘Be Mighty” campaign to reinforce messages of
acceptable materials.

The information campaign will be further supported
with a behaviour change campaign. The campaign
will run alongside the informational campaign and
will focus on the "why recycle?” designed to evoke
an emotional response and focus on the impacts of
non-participation. To support the behaviour change
campaign, engagement and education staff will
directly engage with residents on the doorstep to
promote and maximise recycling opportunities. This
will include an ongoing campaign within our schools
to ensure our younger people are engaged.

Additional capacity requirements will be discussed
on an individual basis and extra containers provided
on a case by case basis.

1%

Pillar 3, Kerbside
Organic Recycling

Campaign 1 and 2 will have a significant focus on
food waste participation messages, both
informational and emotive to evoke a behaviour
change. To support the behaviour change
campaign engagement and education staff will
engage with residents on the doorstep.

This will include an ongoing campaign within our
schools to ensure our younger people are engaged.

This will be further supported by the introduction of
free caddy liners for 1 year. 6 month supply of liners
will  be delivered to properties with an
accompanying information booklet. The impact of
this intervention will be reviewed thereafter.

The team will continue with the “Mash for Cash’
food waste incentivisation campaign and consider

1%

Page 11




rebranding and relaunching the campaign to align
with the behaviour change campaign.

Additional capacity requirements will be discussed
on an individual basis and extra containers provided
on a case by case basis.

Pillar 4, Kerbside | Engage with residents to maximise recycling
Residual through the enforcement of existing residual waste
policies, that include for top hatting (bags stacked
on top of the bin) and side waste.
Pilar 5,  Trade | Review existing service to ensure the residual trade | 1%
Service waste service is competitive and has a focussed

customer base.

Develop business case for future trade recycling
services and implement new service in line with the
new commercial waste regulations.

Enabling Theme 1,
Communication
and Engagement

Extensive and continuous communication is an
essential ingredient throughout this programme of
change. It is therefore weaved throughout each
pillar, forming a vital part of service change and
increased participation.

The multipronged approach will see the delivery of
two campaigns running alongside one another, the
first will focus upon reinforcing information about
how to recycle effectively and the second will focus
upon the theme of behaviour change, focussing on
the “why recycle?”.

The campaigns will be delivered across various
media channels in order to ensure we reach all
segments of the community and will feature arange
of key messages tailored to the audience, including
our schools.

The bespoke campaigns will be further supported
by WRAP’s highly recognised “Be Mighty"
campaign which focuses on a sense of teamwork
and togetherness.

Combined together all 3 campaigns will ensure we
communicate the How, Why and Teamwork
required to achieve success.

Enabling Theme 2,
Workforce
Engagement

Initial meetings have held with the Trade Unions
and workforce on the route map and its priority
interventions. This engagement will continue
throughout the programme of change and in the
development of the waste strategy

Identify key training requirements necessary to
implement the interventions. This has already

Page 12




commenced with additional customer service
training for HRC operatives.

Engage with collection crews on the transition to
digitisation and round configuration

Enabling Theme 3, | Consideration of future requirements for waste

Infrastructure transfer station and depot requirements

Enabling Theme 4, | Consider opportunities for ULEV when reviewing
Ultra Low | the vehicle replacement strategy. Explore issues
Emissions around charging infrastructure at Tiryberth depot.

Extend the roll out of electric small supervisor vans

Enabling Theme 5, | Introduce a digital mobile solution for waste [ 1%
Digital Offer collection rounds to improve efficiencies and
enhance the customer experience. Linking to the
back office it will enable officers to respond
proactively and develop a targeted and individual
approach to education and communication as well

improve customer interactions and journeys.

5.13 The engagement and support of elected members is crucial in shaping the policies and

5.14

5.15

procedures that will be necessary to support the delivery of the Resource and Waste
Route Map and the Strategy that will be developed thereafter. It is therefore proposed
that a scrutiny task and finish group is established consisting of a maximum of 10
members, will all scrutiny committee members invited to express an interest. The group
will report to the Housing and Environment Scrutiny Committee or a Joint Scrutiny
Committee meeting, with its findings and recommendations.

It is clear we cannot make the required step changes alone and a collective effort is
required. It is important that residents, and our communities have the opportunity to
shape proposals and it is proposed that as the strategy is developed, a far-reaching
consultation process is undertaken. Returning to Scrutiny in the Autumn a fully drafted
Resource and Waste Strategy will be presented in advance of seeking approval from
Cabinet to commence public consultation. The consultation will utilise a range of
channels to ensure the process is fair, equitable and representative. Undertaken over
an extended period in early 2024, and a further report will be considered by the Council
joint scrutiny and cabinet thereafter,

Conclusion

The Council's Waste and Recycling service needs to improve to support the transition
to Net Zero by 2030 and meet current and future statutory recycling targets. The
resource and waste route map presented sets out the long-term ambitions for the
service, structured around the waste hierarchy and with decarbonisation and reducing
consumption at its heart. It includes immediate interventions that are intended to
support behaviour change and achieve an initial uplift against current baseline
recycling performance. It also sets out a longer-term programme of change structured
with five pillar projects and five enabling themes.

The challenges to deliver such wide-ranging change should not be underestimated
and the route map sets out realistic timescales to deliver the step change required. To

Page 13




6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

8.1

8.2

do this, the Council and its residents are going to need to work differently and together,
as it is clear we cannot do this alone.

Our Team Caerphilly approach will help us deliver our ambition of being an exemplar
Resource and Waste Council and importantly taking positive action now to preserve
the Caerphilly of tomorrow for our future generations.

ASSUMPTIONS

The Authority remains at risk of a fine being levied for not meeting statutory recycling
targets. It is assumed that by demonstrating commitment to the Resource and Waste
Route map and development and delivery of the new Strategy, the Authority will be
able to demonstrate its commitment and make the progress required to avoid future
fines.

The immediate interventions to deliver an increase to baseline recycling performance
have been reviewed and are assumed they will be achievable within the timescales
detailed.

It is assumed that resource from WRAP Cymru will be made available as part of the
Welsh Government funded Collaborative Change Programme to support the
immediate interventions identified.

It is assumed that subject to the five-case business model and approvals, Welsh
Government funding and future Cabinet approvals will be made to support the
investment needed to deliver the Resource and Waste Route Map.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The respective lIA forms have been drafted and are attached in Appendices 2 and 3
and provide contingency arrangements to meet the needs and aspirations of our
residents with protected group characteristics and special requirements. These will
be further refined following consideration of the public consultation feedback.

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-waste-strategy-report

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-hwrc-booking-system-a-pre-
sort

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are considerable financial implications associated with the full strategy, these
will be fully considered when the strategy is brought forward to Cabinet, following
consultation. At the sametime a full five case business model will be developed and
an understanding of Welsh Government funding support to deliver the full strategy will
be provided.

It is important to highlight that the Council faces potential Welsh Government financial
penalties for not achieving recycling targets, equating to £200k for each percentage
point below target. The current recycling performance for 2021-22 (last full year of
ratified data) is 59.67 percent, against a target of 64 percentand 70 precent from next

Page 14


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-waste-strategy-report
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-hwrc-booking-system-a-pre-sort
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-hwrc-booking-system-a-pre-sort

year. At 10 percent below target the Authority is at risk of a £2m fine per annum unless
it acts.

The following table highlights the work needed to be undertaken in the short term. The
estimated costs are £2.347m for an initial two-year period and cover the development
of the strategy, consultation, and the immediate interventions identified to improve
recycling performance in the short term and demonstrate progress towards targets
whilst a full strategy is developed.

Pillar / Theme Activity

Additional 2 year fixed-term appointments within the
waste team to support the implementation of the
actions detailed below: -

Information Liaison Officer x 1 (£69k)
Technical Assistant x 1 (£86k)

Data Entry Administrator x 1 (£63k)
Recycling Advisors x 6 (£462k)
Health & Safety Officer x 1 (£97k)

Pillar 1, HRC provision Sites improvements to include new signage, new
branded uniforms, and site reconfiguration (£20k)

Implementation of a Digital Booking system (cost
included in Enabling Theme 5 below)

Nine additional staff at HRCs to implement service
changes and improve customer engagement
(£567k)

Pillar 2, Kerbside Dry | Provision of Extra Bins - Based on a projected
Recycling additional 8,000 bins (£180k)

Pillar 3, Kerbside Organic | Provision of free food waste liners for 12 months
Recycling only (£255k)

Extra caddies to respond to any increases in
participation - Based on a projected additional
10,000 caddies (£52k)

Pillar 4, Kerbside Residual | Stickers for top hatting/side waste (£18k)

Pillar 5, Trade Service Abusiness case will be developed

Enabling Theme 1, | Communication costs to support the delivery of the
Communication and | interventions including advertising, design costs,
Engagement events, and leaflets (£128k)

Enabling Theme 2, | Continue discussions with TU’s and the workforce

Workforce Engagement

Enabling Theme 3, | Review and develop proposals
Infrastructure

Page 15



8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

Enabling Theme 4, Ultra | Review and develop proposals
Low Emission

Enabling Theme 5, Digital | Complete end to end waste digital solution (£350k)
Offer

It is proposed that the initial short-term costs of £2.347m are funded through the
establishment of a specific reserve funded from current uncommitted capital
earmarked reserves.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The proposals in the Resource and Waste Route Map and immediate interventions to
increase recycling would mean changes to the waste service and working practices.
None of the changes will result in a reduced number of staff within the services but will
require an increase in staffing levels as identified in 8.3, albeit that the initial increase
in posts will be funded on a fixed-term basis as part of the proposed establishment of
a £2.347m reserve.

The workforce has a key role to play to making the step changes required and will be
engaged in the development of this strategy.

The future strategy that will be developed as part of the route map, will be subject to
full consultation in 2024 and a workforce plan to support future service delivery will be
developed, which will be fully costed and included in future Cabinet reports. HR and
the Trade Unions will be fully engaged in this process.

The scale of changes within the route map and subsequent strategy are wide ranging
and support will be required from across the Council to deliver the changes. The
programme of projects detailed within this report will be managed and delivered
through a robust project management process which will involve all key service areas
from across the Council.

CONSULTATIONS

In November/December 2022, the Council commenced a phase of engagement called
‘What matters to you?'. This highlighted:

e 93 percent of respondents agreed that waste collection and recycling services
should continue to be a priority when planning council services and budgets
for 2022/23 and beyond.

e 86 percent of respondents felt that waste collection and recycling services was
as important or more important to them than 12 months ago. Insight

An online ‘quick poll’ sought additional views on waste and recycling during January
2023, with 2,632 responses, insights included:

e 79% of respondents said they recycle food waste at the kerbside.

e From those respondents who don’t currently recycle food waste, their
reasons for not doing so were primarily that they compost any food waste,

Page 16



10.3

104

10.5

11.

111

Author:

they don’t waste any food, they don't like the smell/feel its unclean or they
don’t have any liners to place inside the caddy.

e 99 percent of respondents said they regularly recycle using their brown
bin/recycling box/recycling bags at the kerbside.

e 73 percent of respondents said they regularly make use of the
green/garden waste recycling service.

e From those respondents who don't, their reasons for not doing so were
primarily that they don’t have any garden waste/a garden or that they use
the service but seasonally (not year-round).

Meetings with Trade Union colleagues have taken place and the proposals were
broadly accepted on the understanding that changes did not reduce the workforce,
although it was understood some repurposing of existing roles may be required. As
the workforce plan and draft waste strategy is developed, Trade Union colleagues will
be fully engaged throughout the process.

Meetings with the operational workforce have taken place and the proposals were
broadly accepted. There was unanimous acceptance and understanding of the need
to change, with an expectation that operational challenges associated with the current
operating model would be addressed. Specific concerns were raised around the
increase of physical and verbal abuse incidents from the public. This matter will be
explored further with the workforce and Trade Union colleagues with appropriate
interventions put in place thereafter.

As previously stated we cannot do this alone, and it will take a collective effort of our
residents, communities and workforce working together. As such it is important that
residents help shape the future strategy and proposals. Officers propose to present
the draft waste strategy to a future Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet during the Autumn
period where approval will be sought to launch an extensive consultation process
beginning in early 2024, following which the strategy will be finalised and approved as
Council policy.

STATUTORY POWER

The following statutory powers, relevant to the Resource and Waste Rout Map are
identified:

¢ Environment Protection Act (2010)

Revised Waste Framework Directive (r2018)

Environment Act (2021)

Waste (Wales) Measure (2010)

Hayley Jones Waste Strategy and Operations Manager / Marcus Lloyd,
Head of Infrastructure

Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive

CllIr. Chris Morgan, Cabinet Member for Waste, Leisure and Green
Spaces

ClIr Sean Morgan, Leader of Council

Sue Richards, Head of Education, Planning and Strategy

Page 17



Appendices:

Ben Winstanley, Head of Land and Property Services

Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant

Cath Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager

Liz Lucas, Head of Customer and Digital Services

Rob Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure
Services

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Sarena Ford, Communications Manager

Stefano Jefferson, Transformation Manager — Commercial Investment
Councillor. D. Tudor Davies MBE, Chairman, Environment and
Sustainability Committee

Councillor. Adrian Hussey, Vice Chairman, Environment and Sustainability
Committee

Appendix 1 — Resource and Waste Routemap

Appendix 2 - Integrated Impact Assessment (Informational Campaign
Behaviour Change)

Appendix 3 — Integrated Impact Assessment (HRC Booking System and
Pre-Sort)

Page 18



APPENDIX 1 — Routemap

Page 19



RESOURCEAND
WASTE ROUTE MAP

b}
CAERPHILLY

CAERFFILI
-~

Page 20



CONTENTS

Intreduction
Backgrownd
Approach

The Programme

Condlusion and Next Steps

Page 21



RESCUSCE AND WASTZ A0UTE NP

7 1 \ INTRODUCTION

following transfoemation route map

outlings a credibie plan that Casephily
Coundil are committed to deliver, with support

from Welsh Govemnment 10 transiorm the
county borough's resource and waste service.

The route mag sets out the plan 10 ensure
Caerphily meots and excoeds statutory
perfcemance targets, whilst being realistic about
the timescales and resources reguired. It seeks
to debver a high-quality service that maximises
material quality and supports the tansitiontoa
Circutar Econonmy, offering social and economic

oppontunitios.

LR RRR

PR RV R R ER e

Howewer, 1o do this both the Coundil and its
regdents ae going 1o need 10 work differently
and together The route map cutines how this
koo term change will be achieved.

The next decade will seo significant policy
changes to the resousce and waste sector

0 Wales, with econamic levers (o reduce
consumption and improve material quality
and security, including Workplace Recyding
Reguiations, Extended Producer Respons bilty
|EPR), Deposit Retum Scheme (DRS) and Digitad
Waste Tracking.

Page 22



D

Carpulrp had histerically performed well,

ng 66.7 pancent recycing in J017-18,
bt ha since dedined, and perfommance sver
B past Ehinda yoaes has baen balow tanget with
i Aarthonity a1 fisk of 3 penalty Ame.

Thiie cursen s yoling rate is vl Do tha levels

raquined to achieve the statuiony tanget of 20
pefcant by B024-35 and tha Authaity contifess

to b at risk of significant fess.

BACKGROUND

Thiis Foute Fap 5615 ot this plan t© ensam
Casrphilly meets and s Sttty
pesformance tangets, whilst being realistic
absiit thi Bimascakes and resounces fegquieed to
et dhesie ambitions. I has boen deviskoped

i lired wifth ther veaste hisrechy supporting the
principles of wasie pereeniion and minimisation,
BuppOting se-use, secycling and finally residual
rocoway and LandiSl for i s et Dot bl for i
SR oF recycineg.

Table 1: Caerphilly recyding performance against targets 200192022

Actual % Pamalty lisbality
2 8-20 % 6251 EX72.000
rErdinel | 61.92 £4&01 200
n21-13 5070 £838.300
200333 6076 [penjcind)

TheWaste Hierarchy

St Irecl s
Uing bric mabarial in diigr and manulaclure.

g Mg priochets for langu. Liing less hazardeas

i bl
Chucking, chismireg, ripsirineg, mifurbhing whele

Preparing for re-use L S ———y
Turmireg waite info s nees webitanse o produt inchales
e compadting il il meets quality prolocels

Including andsnbic Sgeilion, indnimeton with snemgy
Oy S
[Fesebi, Feaak e} dradl rmabariak from washi; s Backiling

o al
4 ¥ Laradfll and incirma on with oul snengy Moy

Page 23



Table 1 : Challenges

FEETLET I & bl WS T BOUT T AR

In P ernineg pariormancs Jnd seoking 1o adde-s
e bcues identifed, the following challenges
hiate s bt fliesd:

Challenge
Restid s i " = SEEkg My which
Carphilly 28 s F1Rg by highear
prodiucing trean Thee natio nal
companativily Feers of 37T kghih
oy | TR e ] W e 201003,
W
1 W
Theia ars Fukgh ¥ | Cormps tonal
I I WOED IS ralysis oo
-l 3 Housedobkd trat e tham hal,
Rt i Rixcycding SES pancen of ther
Contras (HRCL), residual kirbside
wrp=rcially sirgam corta e
negichal wasoe. manedial that coukd
b pecyched, using
existing sarvices
Matatial Reise + | Repaned dry euse for
H ai HACs has BOHII2T weas T503T
st hisrically ‘toarire, witich s 16784
‘ b BN 3 PRAEE ‘oS s thain thee
ahop at Panalita national Jwarage of
— W P i AT EDS T
Thwdisd aisd: w 20- 3 pescent of
bk leswiks ol Al vaccta colkcied
£ LT TN a1 thie ke for
O TG recycliog is nod able
co-mningl ed to b procemad
ﬂ b it i recyclie This
oo lkecticn of consists of untaegeted
meeyclabdic manerials &gy Tetragak
miatedial. el COMETENSITIS £ug.
T write
Ryl
HRC o SR =
recyching yiokl Ridfiafncn on secondary
i o sor of residual warie
contaneds which is
Costly and e FaDie
W FRDONOTY Fales
hiztew doclingsd
3

Ruconfigune HR S
b facilitabe & shift of
e Froen residual

b0 mecycling sreams.

Imroaee marta all
uality o e
bovaeds o Ciecular
Ecoaumy in Wales.

Imprording tha HRC
racycling offer on
siter Thinougin  uses
feianadly, recycing
first pecrisioen with

PR Tl L

Page 24



}
a]

Rz rwir
Infrastruciure

-~ w
Casrphily has - v | ZeEkgmhhye

Reduce owerall
tha highast rasidual warte.
quanitity residual
WD PO pEEEOn
nWales
Thaia are Mo miaterials feam
high lewek rasiduall o necyClng
of ecyclabke SCFEams.
miatesial imthis
rthichoia | SEFE e
Theara ara Figih Raeducing asscadabile
kawais of Fioad food waste and
WAt in the i food washs
neshchual steeaim feomi residisal bin 1o
existing food vweaste
SRIEL
Tha HFIC Ensuring woar
nieteork & undoer Ferbanudl y, mecharm,
pEressune and efficient BHRC
WOCEEE o tha perreisicm i5
Trahir S is important i
challengireg and SUpRt widar
mequiFes a long senvicn changes
T AR @t
Pl
Thae LB Thie Fuibuna
Wiste Trarlar R ounce 5 Wa st
Srak o ot Full SEERTETY Cafe
MOGOn Mgengs b cosnishdarad in
siagrafi canit isalation, developing
e coenpBant, eMcient
il theava 2 and effectie
0N ek 0 infrastruchur e
sutitadil ity that suppeets
Capacity af this a safe working
e for fuburs envirorersnt and
NEGUIF G i% sl table for our
enviroreTsencal
SED TS MUSE b
ditlrerred abonerics
thir fubure stratagy

Page 25



&

wmmwmmm
G4 T and thiel aoginal o dvisors,
an avidencs M & pEroech Thal ima e e

prorrioa beaiming and best practaos will snduns
i lomeg-term holiEtic srarbegy & devedl opshd

and delvered, laking the service to 3030 and
Barypnridl. Wi il Tk Seocoisnt o curment and

Scheame, and Watte Tracking, to developa
sarwice Tt Tor the fubune and supported by the

residends of Casrphly.

It s claar that dhe Coundl cannot do this

sl and 2 Col kctive @Mort Troen nesidents,
el RGO 2] Ofel WA DO SO LTy

wiill B s skt i BTN ] SUSTIING
succass. Reddents will be ot the keart of the
teaireal o TNAThoin jounmery and whise possible
Incramanial change will b used bo immied by
imiprosse poriormiance and to help ambsd g
taien behavioural change The drangss need 1o
rasiilt in 2 highly engaged population who e
recyclineg effoctivedy.

W ane in a dirrate emangency and the Coundil
declasaticn in 2019, coenmitted o becoming
nest zeen by 3030 Chimate changs b significantly
impacted by unsustainable conumEation and
wasts dispodal Th ne mag and a5sociaed

T T T—_—

APPROACH

chamge progeenene will develop a strong

naTative 1o the dimate emeegency, creating
& golden theead Trom climnabs T reesu K

CONSLTHEE R, FEROUFTEE AN Was e IMaia Qoiment
across thie county borougi. This mist hawva,
dincarbon imthon a1 it heart, seeling 10 Maduce
tha amiount of erengy and eenbsion s nduding
uhra-loee enission velhicies and the production of
T MR gy,

Ther appenadn aligns with, and miust st within,
‘thas e tional conteot and paolicy framerson. As
& pubdic ket s il ensure v wiork with our
COTWTI Gt DO perbact the boerey Danen imipact
ol oo dacisions in Ene with the Well-bsing
aid Futung Caneeatiors ACT [2015]) and tha
Ervsirnnim et AT 20210 W il also B guidisd
by thee Wiaksh Maticnal Wame sEatisgy. Tosaeds
Zero Waste, The Beryond Recyding strategy ax well
2 the forthcomiing Business, Thied and Publkc
Riscycling begisati on.

e prcagramima vl B prasonied in Eng with
thas veaale hisranchy, supporting the peind ples of
WA PR RN and Frindmisal o, SunDonineg
ne-Usa, recycing ard Anally resdual recoverny
|l Fow | bems neort st able for Poars o
recycling. Using this approach whik dess oping
tha stranedqy, will provide a famesork that brings
TeShdanis Wil LS On Chis joumey 1o net 2680
T

Page 26



Route Map to a Net Zero Caerphilly County Borough

Hig "'
i '.-": ,. ._‘ Zero 2030

Towrards Net

Page 27



Table Tesn: Resowrce and Waste Strategy Ohbjectives

Oisjiective O

Promoie
minErisation

TR 5
dongside
tangeted
T PGS,
Digvwedop e

netwacerk of Hbrany
of things.

Rindbscin i off
Siregl e e
rechodie] plantic
e T &
arthars to Foliow.

Digvwedop e
POMaE o
T
rinosdhice HRC
booking sysbem
- subjesct totrial
aired positive

ared Deposit
Retuimms Schiasrie
i b L tns
i cmpdy vt
v By beliartion.

OEjective Tisd

Expand Fosura at
HRC including
making it aaky to
donate items.
Promats
Nt ol
repair and Feus.

Dibjeciive Thres

Inecraase gualicy
amad propostion of
recycliod matosial

InCrease
oEpoftunities for
CORTITILINITY LD
recyche 2.9 Saparate
littad and o un
avants

| M e
panicipatioe in
Pioeced svas s

Drrvalop HRC ©o
capburn as masch

racycling as
peociai Bl

hjective Four

et uliras oy
e vahichen

Rirdiidi s St
b0 laareciRill.

Digitalise the
s@rece making i
A DAY 3% P bl
foe residents o

en garge whilst
Masimisineg
afficiorcies by
peowiding eobust
perlomance data.
Chaas, cons et

signiposting.
Making desined
berhariowins a5
earky a5 P ble
Frapan: a

CORTETILNITY
d cati o

Page 28



&AY

FpE the disvalopmsnt of the fouts
miap, & el ormation pnoegmms will b
bl gl condEcting of Tive “Fillar Projecs” and
fire TEmabdineg T

PILLAR PROJECTE

Hizusaledld Racycling Contres: Thane aie D
HRCs rranagire circa 22,000 1onnes of mateial.
A Tull resvia of siiss will ba wndertalken, o enaes
ey i 1L FoF Psr POk, iNCPOasife i-Lisd 3ifed
reCycling opporiunities and red ucing nesidal
wiasta. This vl include a revicw of hutun site

P S, chelop N & DS eSS Cace fof Chags:
ared | @miediting Chi recomersnded ohangis

Esrbsids Dy Recsclineg: Undomake a iovios
iof lrbeiche FeaCycling 10 imgEoe the capius

ared gpiality of nabarial collected. Using bact
practice and Cakine] an evidenoe-Dased approach,
i, pll o it weill witil ke daka gak hawing

e esechi lireg) 00 irvieaimy T VLIS IFRRSS S

T dred Turbuie Sosnacs: nd will i nchedo the
e |t o o Qimy S Chiafeg i

Esrbaids Drganit Becycling: Fromote and
imiprose exiing sarvice offers Tor organic
kit gk collsction including incFeasing Sood
weasio participation and developdng borg tenm
plarc for garden wasts.

Esrbsbde Risldual: Korbaide v dual wasts
capacity and feegquency will be revievwsed, &
detaied Equalities mpact Assesment will be
undamalien 0o st in the development of
SUPPOTT SEFECes 10 355BT any Tubuee dhan ges.

PROGRAMME

Tirdetls Wasts Servioss: This peojo gllar waill
sk o miset thi new regulations for busimess,
‘i e el © SRaTTON ONQENESIE I 2IT0SE

the county boeough by sobiising trade wasie
sarvicEs that includke The sepate collection of in
soopae recyciablke mateFials

Thi fodloewing Enabdiing thommes willl run across
alll v pillass to suppoet the delivery of the
T ST o norhe e

Commanicatisn and Engegement “olcwng
Hakeholder mapping. & deialed, comgeehenave
e st picaitegied COFTME RN Loy 2ied
ergagamicnt plan will be dovlopsd bo support
Tha dhliveny of e Siraiegy. Thi erabling sSream
ol pErmaEtE 20ross This Wil Dinogra mimas.
BeFrawioural insight, pamicipatin mapping

] nisdige thisry will fem thie feundation for
Tha wasrioas cam pabgre 2med Chay will adapt and
ervnhie a0 val move Thiough ohe stages ol the
TR L

‘Werlolercs Engagemant: The workloroe is a
by emabder o the ovserall sucoess of This ns
appenech. These changes will directly imgac
thaain and shigukd ot b undefemtisnabed, Thic
worksiream will Sumno LT engagemant, LT
rainineg, workdornce consulation, healih 2md
wafeiy and the deselo prmait of fesw policies. This
will include angaeJamant with o workdonos Jnd

Page 29



Infrastrecture: Building upon previous

work undertaken, develop and deliver a
compeelensive infrastructure strategy that
supports the strateqy. This will indude the
considoration of a Waste Transfer Station, depot
requirements as well a5 2 long term plan for HRC
provigon

Ultra Low Emission: Dovelop a strategy to
debver long tem spirations for an ultra-low
emisdon feet inchuding procurement and
required iInSastrnucture.

RESOURCE AN WASTI ROUTE mApP

Digital Offer: In ine with the Councis
Customer and Digitad strategy, the digital
capability of the service is essential 10 drive
effickencies and 10 provide end 10 end sarvice
indormation to help monitor measure and
review the senvice to ensure it meets ctizen
roquisemnents. Digital deliverables include:
route aptimisation, tront end systemns and in
calb devices and this work will ook 10 maximise

opportunitios to work smarter. This vital data will

form 2 key clement in understanding Comimenity
beraviowr changes at a hypar local leved.

Page 30



=% DELIVERY
{3 APPRoACH

TERERREER R R R e

n developing the route map, a sumber These are 2ntiCipated 10 INCreade recyding performance,
of immediate interventions for the thesely demonatrating our imenedi ate foous upon

period 2023- 2025, have been identified. Daginning cwr journey for long term change.

Projected %
point InCroase

Pillar Enabling theme Activity

Allac 1 Impl ement recommendations from the recent WRAP 1%
HRC provision observational study in siation to signage and site layout,
to move focus to secycing rather than waste dispoal.
Introduce 3 pre SO requiFeeant across the HRC Network.
This will require site users to bring waste 10 the site
segregated into its vasious material fractions.

IMpecwe OUSTomMes eNgIGemMent aCrons the Network
through the introduction of additional customer trained
operatives on site.

Introduce a trial booking system an one site, followed by 2
roll 0wt 10 the remaining sites if the trial proves successiul

Pillar 2 A widespread informational campaign will be Lunched, %%
Kerbside Dry supportad by WRAPS woll establiched “Bo Mighty”™
Recycling cameaign to einforce mesages of acceptabie materials.

The information carpaign will be further supported
with a behaviour change campaign. The campaign will

To support the behavicur change campaign, engagement
and education staff will directly engage with reddents

on the doorstep 1o promote and maximise recycling
cpportunities. This will inclade an ongoing camgaign
within our schools 10 eNSUNe OUr YOUNGer people aee
engaged.

Additional capacity requisements | will be discussed oo an
Iindividual bags and extea containers provided on a case by
case basis

10

Page 31



Fillar Emabling theme

RISOURCE ANS WAS TEAOUTT MA»

Activity

Projected %

Pllar 4

Pllar 5
Trade Service

Enabling Theme 1

Campaign 1 and 2 will have a significant focus on food
waste participation messages, both informational and
emotive 10 evoke 2 behaviour change. To suppoet the
behaviour change campaign engagement and education
staff will engage with residents on the doorstep.

This will include an ongoing Gampaign within our schools
L0 RNSUNS O YOUNGEr Peopie e engaged.

This will be further supported by the introduction of free
caddy liners foe | year. & month supply of liners will bo
deliverad to properties with an accomnpanying information
booklet. The impact of this intervention will be reviewed
thereattar.

The team will continue with the "Mash for Cash” food waste
incontivisation camgaign and consider sebeanding and
relaunching the campaign to align with the behaviour
cdhange camgaign.

Engage with residents to maximise recycing theough

the endorcement of existing resickal waste policies, that
include for top hatting (bags stacked on top of the bin)
and side waste.

Review exiLing senvice 10 encure the residual trade waste
service is competitive and has a focussed oustomer base.

Develop business case for future trade recycding services
and imploment new service in line with the new
commescial waste requlations.

Extorsive and continvuous commanication & an essential
ingredient throwghout this peogramme of change. It is
thesefore woeaved theoughout each pillar, forming a vitad
part of service change and increased participation.

The multipronged approach will see the delivery of two
Campaigns nunning dongside one anothes, the first will
foous upon reinforcing information about how to recycle
effoctively and the secand will focus upon the theme of
behaviour change, focussng on the “why recycke?”

The campaigns will be delivered across various media
channoks in ceder 10 ensure we reach all segments of

the comumenity and will faature a range of kiy messages
tikved to the audence, iInduding our schools.

The bespoke campaigns will be further supported by
WRAP highly recognised “Be Mighty” campaign which
focuses on a sense of teamwork and togetherness.
Combined together all 3 campaigns will encuse we
communicate the How, Wy and Teamrwork reguired 1o
achieve success.

poimt increase

1%

1%

Page 32



Enabling Theme 2
Workforce
Engagement

Enabling Theme 3
Infrastructure

Enabling Theme 4
Ultra Low Emissions

Enabling Theme 5
Digital Offer

Initial meetings have held with the Trade Unions and
workforce on the route map and its priority interventions.
This engagement will continue throughout the
programme of change and in the development of the
waste strategy.

Identify key training requirements necessary to implement
the interventions. This has already commenced with
additional customer service training for HRC operatives.

Engage with collection crews on the transition to
digitisation and round configuration.

Consideration of future requirements for waste transfer
station and depot requirements.

Consider opportunities for ULEV when reviewing the
vehicle replacement strategy. Explore issues around
charging infrastructure at Tiryberth depot. Extend the roll
out of electric small supervisor vans.

Introduce a digital mobile solution for waste collection
rounds to improve efficiencies and enhance the customes
experience. Linking to the back office it will enable officers
to respond proactively and develop a targeted and
individual approach to education and communication as
well improve customer interactions and journeys.

12

Projected %
point increase

1%

Page 33



L@A RESOURCES

LLLLLLLRRRRRRE

TR R R e

programme will require additional
staff and Anancial resource to enswre R is
delivered efectively. A Hoad of Waste post will
be created to provide additional capacity and
expertise alongside the Head of Infrastructure.

The existing waste toam will be reviewed, and
addional capacity and skill sets will be required
o suppoct the development and delivery of the
route mag, whilst ensuring the exiting service

is not compromised. Furthermore, an integrated
Programene team, supported by the corporate
sl Cemation rescurce has boen convened
which will include ICT, Health and Safety, Fimance,
Peopie Services, Communications, etc. Froject
Managers will be required to lead the work pilass
and enabling Streams.

Additionally, Weich Government will continue 0
provide support.

13

Page 34



P by
¥— s CONCLUSION
V".‘?‘ f? ‘;"\‘S
o" . p "‘,‘Z\
] NI,
g / Y & NEXT STEPS
W B
el R LT
DL Ry
@ Coundl remains committed to During this financial year we will undertake
addressing s recyding performance and sevenal service interventions across Al fve
the route map outlined is fully supported pilars and begin development towards the
by the Leader, Cabinet Membar and Chief free enabling streams in eamest, to begin 0
Executive to deliver long term sustainable rprove our parformance. A compreherdive
change, that aligns 10 our dimate declaration communi cation and engagement Camgaign
and meets statutory recycling targets. buiking on behavicural insights, will heip

regdents fully understand and engage with
exkiting services in the first instance. This focus
will inizially be upon addressing food waste,
reducing contamination in the recyding steeam
and reducing resichal waste.

In paralel work will be undertaken aver the
Sumener period to develop an updated draft
rategy, that will indlude future recycling service
changes and timescakes forimplementation for
considenation by a Joint Scruting comerétiee and
decizion by Cabinet late Autumn 2023 witha
view of commencing pubiic consultation at the

begineing of 2024

Page 35



Maer doogien hon ar gael yn Gymraeq, ac mewn ieithoedd a ffoomatau erad ar gais
This document Is avallabie in Welsh, and in other languages and formats on request

Page 36



Appendix 2

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment

This integrated impact assessment (IlA) has been designed to help support the Council
in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance with a range of
relevant legislation, including:

Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011

Socio-economic Duty — Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010

Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning
rinciples

UVVVVYVY

PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if
proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic
decisions.

See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic
Duty Welsh Government Guidance.

PROPOSAL DETAILS

Lead Officer:- Rhodri Lloyd, Nicole White

Head of Service:- Marcus Lloyd

Service Area and Department:- Waste Management
Date:- 15" June 2023

What is the proposal to be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and
provide a link to any relevant report or documents.

Caerphilly Council's transformation route map outlines a credible plan that the
Authority is committed to deliver, with support from Welsh Government to transform
the resource and waste service and ensure Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory
performance targets. It seeks to deliver a high-quality service that maximises material
quality and supports the transition to a Circular Economy, offering socialand economic
opportunities. However, to achieve this both the Council and its residents are going to
need to work differently. The route map outlines how this long-term change will be
achieved.

A widespread informational campaign will be launched, supported by WRAP’s well
established Be Mighty campaign to reinforce messages of acceptable materials.

The campaign will be further supported by a behaviour change campaign. The
campaign will run in tandem with the informational campaign and will focus on the
‘why’ designed to evoke an emotional response and focus on the impacts of non-
participation. To support the behaviour change campaign engagement and education

Page 37


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf

staff will be required to engage with residents on the doorstep to promote and
maximise recycling opportunities.

The campaigns will be delivered across various media to ensure that we reach all
segments of the community and will feature a range of key messages tailored to the
audience. The information will be available in Welsh and other languages on request
including different formats — digital and non-digital.

Information Campaign will include:

e Video

e Branding collection vehicles

e 12 month social media campaign
o Kerbside guide

e Resource Hub (Libraries)

e Waste Newline special

e Community gamification

e Community Events

e Bin personification stickers

Behaviour Campaign will include:
e Launch video
e 12 month social media campaign
e Video series
e Local art piece
e Waste Newsline special
e Large scale print campaign
e Community Events

Supplementing the informational campaign there are offers proposed that will help to
facilitate increased participation and capture of recyclable material collected from the
kerbside services in the form of additional recycling containers (dry recycling) and
supplies of bioliners (food waste).

Page 38



2a

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

2b

EQUALITY ACT 2010 (STATUTORY DUTIES) (WALES) REGULATIONS 2011
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the
need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassmentand victimisation; advance
equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between
different groups). Please note that an individual may have more than one protected
characteristics.

Age (people of all ages)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral — Communication will be aimed at reducing the confusion surrounding the
materials that can and cannot be recycled, providing people with more confidence in
participating in the recycling service. The campaign will be delivered door-to-door so
residents can benefit from receiving this information on their doorstep.

Neutral — some residents, especially the elderly may not be comfortable answering
the door. A calling card/recycling information will be posted along with the telephone
number of the contact centre if they wish to contact us for further information. If a
resident has a ‘no cold caller’ sticker on their door staff will not knock.

The information will be available in a variety of different formats and
languages upon request.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Disability (people with disabilities/long term conditions)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral — Communication will be aimed at reducing the confusion surrounding the
materials that can and cannot be recycled, providing people with more confidence in
participating in the recycling service. The campaign will be delivered door-to-door so
residents can benefit from receiving this information on their doorstep.

Neutral — some residents may find it difficult in getting to the door in time. A calling
card/recycling information will be posted along with a telephone number and email
address if they wish to contact us for further information. If a resident has a ‘no cold
caller sticker on their door staff will not knock. We will adopt best practice and
Implement appropriate mitigation measures to deal with ability specifics.

The information will be available in a variety of different formats and
languages upon request.

Page 39


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

(i) If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
(i) What evidence has been used to support this view?

2c Gender Reassignment (anybody who's gender identity or gender expression is
different to the sex they were assigned at birth)

Page 40



(i)

(i)

(iii)

2d

(i)

(iii)

2e

(i1)

(iii)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral impact

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Marriage or Civil Partnership (people who are married or in a civil partnership)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral impact

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Pregnancy and Maternity (women who are pregnant and/or on maternity leave)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral impact. Residents will also be able to notified about the nappy collection
service.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 41



2f

(i)

(i1

29

()

(i1)

(iii)

2h

()

(i1)

(iii)

2i

()

Race (people from black, Asian and minority ethnic communities and different racial
backgrounds)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neuitral
If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
What evidence has been used to support this view?

Religion or Belief (people with different religions and beliefs including people with
no beliefs)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Sex (women and men, girls and boys and those who self-identify their gender)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral
If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
What evidence has been used to support this view?

Sexual Orientation (lesbian, gay, bisexual, heterosexual, other)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral

Page 42



(i) If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

(i) What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 43



3a

()

(i1

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY)

(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put
tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making. Socio-economic
disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little
or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater material deprivation, restricting the
ability to access basic goods and services)

Please consider these additional vulnerable group and the impact your
proposal may or may not have on them:

Single parents and vulnerable families

People with low literacy/numeracy

Pensioners

Looked after children

Homeless people

Carers

Armed Forces Community

Students

Single adult households

People misusing substances

People who have experienced the asylum system

People of all ages leaving a care setting

People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)
People involved in the criminal justice system

VVVVVVYVYVVVVVYVYY

Low Income / Income Poverty (cannot afford to maintain regular payments such as
bills, food, clothing, transport etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

(iii) What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 44


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx

3b

(if)
(iii)

3c

()

(i1)

(iii)

3d

(i)

Low and/or No Wealth (enough money to meet basic living costs and pay bills but
have no savings to deal with any unexpected spends and no provisions for the
future)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Material Deprivation (unable to access basic goods and services i.e. financial
products like life insurance, repair/replace broken electrical goods, warm home,
hobbies etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Area Deprivation (where you live (rural areas), where you work (accessibility of

public transport) Impact on the environment?

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

(iii) What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 45



3e

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

3f

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Socio-economic Background (social class i.e. parents education, employmentand
income)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Socio-economic Disadvantage (What cumulative impactwill the proposal have on
people or groups because of their protected characteristic(s) or vulnerability or
because they are already disadvantaged)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 46



4a.

CORPORATE PLAN — COUNCIL’S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES

(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being
Objectives? Whichin turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as
outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any
impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative impacts how have these
been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all

Educational campaigns for kerbside dry recycling and kerbside organic recycling will
help reduce confusion surrounding what can and cannot be recycled. The campaign
will be supported by WRAP’s well established ‘Be Mighty’ campaign and a behaviour
change campaign, whereby education staff will engage with residents face to face on
the doorstep.

Objective 2 - Enabling employment

The proposal will likely result in additional staff being required to deliver the
campaigns. Additional resources will be required as currently there are insufficient
resources to undertake the campaign. Current staff are committed to delivering
existing service provisions.

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout
the county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s
well-being

Effective recycling supports a positive living environment for all residents living in the
county borough which will ensure positive well-being.

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that
increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impact on the
environment

N/A

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy lifestyle in accordance with
the Sustainable Development principle with in the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015

Effective recycling supports people to live a healthy lifestyle by ensuring positive well
being and managing waste sustainably.

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being

Effective recycling supports people to live a healthy lifestyle by ensuring positive well-
being and managing waste sustainably.

Links to any other relevant Council Policy (How does your proposal deliver against
any other relevant Council Policy)

Page 47


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx

Waste Strategy
Decarbonisation
Well-being Plan
Corporate Plan

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — The Five Ways of Working
(ALSO KNOWN AS THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES. THE ACT
REQUIRES THE COUNCIL TO CONSIDER HOW ANY PROPOSAL IMPROVES
THE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL, ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL WELL-BEING OF

Page 48



WALES USING THE FIVE WAYS OF WORKING AS A BASELINE)

How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the
proposal?

Long Term

The proposal will support and encourage better waste and recycling practices inthe
long term and change people’s way of thinking for future generations. The
overarching aim is to reduce the total volume of residual waste collected by
encouraging people to recycle more of their waste. Ultimately this will allow us to
work towards a Circular Economy, reduce carbon footprint and become more
resource efficient.

Prevention

The proposal will support and encourage better waste and recycling practices and
change people’s way of thinking for future generations. The intention of the proposal
is to prevent recyclable materials (including food waste) being placed into the general
waste bin.

Integration

Working with all partners in the waste management sector e.g. CCBC Community
Safety Wardens, Waste and Resources Action Programme, WLGA, Welsh
Government, external consultants, NRW, neighbouring Local Authorities, digital
providers.

This supports our ambition to work ‘Towards Zero Waste’ the Welsh Government’s
strategy.

Collaboration

Working with all partners in the waste management sector e.g. CCBC Community
Safety Wardens, Waste and Resources Action Programme, WLGA, Welsh
Government, external consultants, NRW, neighbouring Local Authorities, digital
providers.

This supports our ambition to work ‘Towards Zero Waste’ the Welsh Government’'s
strategy.

Involvement

Page 49


https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working

Every effort will be made to ensure all residents are able to access the
necessary information. The information will be available in a variety of different
formats and languages upon request.

Page 50



WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015
Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goals and how?
A Prosperous Wales

The proposal will support Wales in being a ‘prosperous society’ by encouraging more
sustainable waste management and recycling practices. This will be achieved through
the encouragement of recycling and reducing reliance on residual disposal methods
such as Energy from Waste/Landfill. Supporting the Welsh Government's Circular
Economy, reducing carbon footprint and becoming more resource efficient.

Resilient Wales

The proposal will support and help us work towards a Circular Economy by
increasing recycling and reducing the volume of general waste. Initiating this project
now is the beginning of us working towards Zero Waste by 2050 and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in resource use. This in turn will
support biodiversity, which is significantly impacted during the extraction of
resources for the products we consume.

A Healthier Wales

The proposal will encourage and provide employment opportunities, which in turn will
benefit people’s lifestyles and their mental and physical well-being. It will also provide
training for staff to increase their knowledge and provide them the tools they need for
potential career progression in the future.

A More Equal Wales

The proposal will support people and our communities by providing employment for
people from all backgrounds. Everyone will have the opportunity to speak to an officer
on the door-step, receive information. If they are not home they will receive information
through their door providing a telephone number, email address and information will
be available in a number of different formats and languages on request.

Page 51


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB

A Wales of Cohesive Communities

The proposal will help connect the Authority with the local community through
collaborative working, face to face engagement, education etc, whilst also providing
additional employment opportunities.

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language

The proposal will comply with the Welsh Language Measure 2011 in all aspects of
education, engagement, communication etc. The proposal is fully compliant with the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and associated Welsh Language Standards.
The proposal will encourage any service users to speak their first language (Welsh,
English or any other).

- We have staff within the department who are able to converse in Welsh whether
that be by telephone, text or email
- All leaflets and information will be available in both English and Welsh

A Globally Responsible Wales

The proposal will support and help us work towards a Circular Economy and become
a more globally responsible Wales. Initiating this project now is the beginning of us
working towards Welsh Government’'s Towards Zero Waste Strategy, which aims to
achieve zero waste by 2050 and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through the
reduction in resource use and increasing recycling. This in turn will support
biodiversity, which is significantly impacted during the extraction of resources for the
products we consume.

Page 52



7a.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

7b.

()

(i)

WELSH LANGUAGE (WALES) MEASURE 2011 AND WELSH LANGUAGE

STANDARDS

(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the
Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative impact a proposal may have
on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is
treated no less favourably than the English language) Policy Making Standards -
Good Practice Advice Document

Links with Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s Five Year
Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027 and the Language Profile

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Neutral - Communication through social media platforms, internet, council website,
leaflets, telephone systems etc will all be bilingual.

The department is committed to complying with the requirements of the Welsh
Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and as a matter of course issues, all its
communications bilingually. The department has a significant proportion of Welsh
speakers across all tiers and can communicate both verbally and in the written form
to queries and service requests. The department supports all the Welsh Government
sustainable waste campaigns, all of which include bilingual narrative and branding.
The Waste team supports the National ‘Be Mighty campaign, which is aiming for
Wales to become the top recycling nation in the world.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

There will be no negative impact on the Welsh language.

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

N/A
Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards. Specifically Standards 88—93

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Communication through social media platforms, internet, council website, leaflets,

telephone systems etc will all be bilingual.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

Page 53


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/appendix-b-menter-iaith-caerffili-welsh-language-p.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx

(iif) What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20, LDP,
Pupil Level Annual School Census

7c. Opportunities to promote the Welsh language e.g. status, use of Welsh language
services, use of Welsh in everyday life in work / community

(i) Doesthe proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

We will ensure that those requiring support to be delivered in Welsh are in no way
discriminated against. The service will always be delivered using the service users
preferred language.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7d. Opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language e.g. staff, residents
and visitors

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Staff will be able transverse in both English and Welsh.If there are negative
impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7e. Treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English
language

(i) Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

All communication and information on the website will be available in English and

Welsh. This will allow the service user to read/access information in their chosen
language.

Page 54



()

(i)

7f.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed
so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a)
opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and (b) treating the
Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

The service will be fully compliant with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure
2011/Welsh language standards which will allow and encourage our service users to
access information in their preferred language, whether that be English or Welsh.

DATA AND INFORMATION

(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the
proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, existing
databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or
other service user feedback, national and regional data, academic publications and
consultants’ reports eftc.)

Data/evidence (Please provide link to report if appropriate)

In November/December 2022, the council ran a phase of engagement called ‘What
matters to you?" 93% of respondents agreed that waste collection and recycling
services should continue to be a priority when planning council services and budgets
for 2022/23 and beyond. Through that same engagement activity, 86% of respondents
felt that waste collection and recycling services was as important, or more important
to them than 12 months ago. Insight from the ‘What matters to you?’ phase also
suggested that residents appreciate the simplicity of our current recycling system.

In addition, an online ‘quick poll' sought additional views on waste and recycling during
January 2023. Key insights from this poll, which received 2,632 responses included:

e 79% of respondents said they recycle food waste at the kerbside. From those
respondents who don’t currently recycle food waste, their reasons for not doing
so were primarily that they compost any food waste, they don’'t waste any food,
they don’t like the smell/feel its unclean or they don’'t have any liners to place
inside the caddy.

e 99% of respondents said they regularly recycle using their brown bin/recycling
box/recycling bags at the kerbside.

e 73% of respondents said they regularly make use of the green/garden waste
recycling service. From those respondents who don't, their reasons for not
doing so were primarily that they don’t have any garden waste/a garden or that
they use the service but seasonally (not year-round).

Page 55



Summary reports for the ‘What matters to you? November/December 2022
engagement phase and the ‘Caerphilly Conversation — budget setting 2023/24
engagement programme can be found at
www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

Key relevant findings

Overall, the findings suggest that the public do not want change. The service is easy
and convenient for a large majority of our residents and they are happy with the way
things are. However, we are always looking at ways to improve our services and we
need change to ensure the Authority remains financially stable now and in the future.
Making changes now will secure this for the Authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The Welsh National Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste was launched on 21 June
2010. The strategy set out a series of challenging statutory recycling targets for
Local Authorities to deliver. These are as outlined below:

201012 | 1213 | 1516 | 19/20 | 24/25

Min. levels of reuse & 40% 52% 58% 64% 70%
recycling/composting (or

AD)

Min. proportion of 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

reuse/recycling/composting
from source separation*

Max. level of landfill - - - 10% 5%
Max. level of energy from - - 42% 36% 30%
waste

Min. levels of preparing for | - 04% |0.6% 0.8% 1.0%

reuse (excluding Waste
Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE))

Caerphilly’s recycling performance is outlined below alongside the Welsh
Government statutory targets. As Graph 1 illustrates, Caerphilly has historically
performed well against Welsh Government targets however, over the last 3 years
recycling performance has declined. Performance for 2019/20 of 62.51%, 2020/21 of
61.90%, and 2021/22 of 59% al fell below the statutory target of 64%.

Page 56


http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

Recycling Trends

80.00% 64%

70.00% 65.50% 6:70% g5 105

61.90% 61.90% 59.67% ®
60.00% s5.91% 57.07% 57.61% 54.60% v C 70%
X 51.38% ° 62.50%
3 50.00% 44.03% ®
& 58%
o
&nzw.o% 22.30% 2%
S 30.00%
o)
Q
& 20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
& » N g > N o ) P o D > U D > >
RO R I MR S S A (O GRS GG
) A DR U N ) S S A S S M S S
Financial Year
==@==Statutory Target Recycling Rate

Through the Waste (Wales) Measure 2010, the Welsh Government (WG) made
recycling targets from 2012-13 and beyond, statutory targets. This status allows
Welsh Government to levy financial penalties against Council’s that fail to achieve
them. The statutory targets are weight based and increased gradually over time. In
the current national Welsh Government waste strategy “Beyond Recycling - A
Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality”, the Welsh Government
has stated they will work with Local Authorities and other key partners

to develop further future recycling targets in line with their pathway to zero waste,
with the aim of achieving 100% recycling by 2050. Welsh Government

indicate that they will put in place further minimum statutory recycling targets for
Local Authorities beyond 2025, potentially at a level of 80% by 2033.

Page 57



How has the data/evidence informed this proposal?

The results of the survey reflect that the service is of high importance and the public
recognise this. This initiative facilitates better performance and supports the financial
stability of the authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The data/evidence has shaped the strategy and this proposal in its entirety.

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this
proposal and how will these gaps be filled? Details of further consultation can be

included in Section 9.

An external consultant has worked alongside the council to develop a series of
behaviour change proposals with the aim of identifying gaps in current levels of
understanding amongst the community. This has shaped the communication strategy
for this proposal.

CONSULTATION

(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where
there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from people that a
consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is
required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to. Consider the Consultation
and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as
the proposal develops and to strengthen the assessment.

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular
attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles.

Who was consulted?
See above — insight gathered to date through the Caerphilly Conversation and recent
quick poll.

When they were consulted did the consultation take place at the formative
stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond?

Yes

Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an
informed decision on the proposal?

Page 58


https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx

Yes
What were the key findings?

See above — insight gathered to date through the Caerphilly Conversation and recent
quick poll.

How have the consultation findings been taken into account?
The findings have been fed back to senior managers and members through the

decision making process. In addition, the insight gathered has formed the basis for
the Scrutiny/Cabinet report being considered in June and July 2023.

Page 59



10.

MONITORING AND REVIEW

How will the implementation and the impact of the proposal be monitored,
including implementation of any amendments?

Speaking to residents face -to-face allows us to gather information on the demographic
profile, allows us to assess age, residential location and other customer information
that could also help us to shape and improve the service we provide as well as
planning resources to assistthose residents who may require special assistance. The
proposal could also ultimately help us with planning sustainable waste management
initiatives. The information will be provided by the resident either at the door step or
via a telephone conversation at a later date if they wish to speak with us via telephone
following the visit. This could for example be that they require an assisted collection is
they are elderly and/or disabled, require a new/additional food waste caddy etc.

Such monitoring will allow us to target resources and provide bespoke solutions for
respective groupings in our communities and help make the waste department
become a smarter, more responsive and more citizen focussed service provider. This
could mean providing extra support for those persons that are less digitally focussed.

Key to the successful monitoring will be engagement with residents to gather
feedback on behaviour change and whether they have indeed altered their
behaviour as a result of the information campaign. Simple tonnage figures, for
example, could be attributed to a variety of sources.

What are the practical arrangements for monitoring?

The overarching aim of the proposal is to improve our services for users, secure the
financial stability of the authority, increase recycling/recovery rates and reduce the
overall volume of residual waste collected. Recycling figures and recovery tonnages
can be monitored based on data captured in Waste Data Flow.

Key to the successful monitoring will be engagement with residents to gather
feedback on behaviour change and whether they have indeed altered their
behaviour as a result of the information campaign. Simple tonnage figures, for
example, could be attributed to a variety of sources.

How will the results of the monitoring be used to develop future proposals?

Any monitoring measures that are introduced will be revisited on a regular basis to
ensure the implementation is successful or not, as well as capturing any data needed,
or improving the service delivery. Data will be captured through Waste Data Flow

Information/data received will be analysed and used to form future commissioning
decisions.

Key to the successful monitoring will be engagement with residents to gather
feedback on behaviour change and whether they have indeed altered their
behaviour as a result of the information campaign. Simple tonnage figures, for
example, could be attributed to a variety of sources.

Page 60



11.

12.

Depending on the outcomes of the monitoring, alternative methods and
messages will need to be considered as the campaign progresses.
When is the proposal due to be reviewed?

The proposal will be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure the proposals are having
the desired effect. Data will be collected through Waste Data Flow.

Who is responsible for ensuring this happens?
Rhodri Lloyd

RECOMMENDATION AND REASONING (delete as applicable)

e Implement proposal with no amendments
e Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined

e Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and
socio-economic disadvantage

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? (delete as
applicable)

e Yes

REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be
included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” section of the Corporate
Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the
Report proposal).

To ensure Caerphilly is able to achieve the required Welsh Government statutory
recycling target of 70% in 2024/25.

To ensure Caerphilly is best placed to move beyond the required 2024/25 recycling
target of 70% in subsequent years and be best placed to work towards the zero
waste.

Welsh Government aspiration.

Page 61



13.

VERSION CONTROL

(The A should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.
The llA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the proposal. The
Version Control section will act as an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been
developed over time) (Add or delete versions as applicable)

Version 1

Author:- Nicole White
Brief description of the amendments/update: -

Revision Date:- 19t" June 2023

Page 62



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT AUTHOR
Name:-RhodriLloyd
Job Title:-Principal Waste Management Officer
Date:-19'" June 2023

HEAD OF SERVICE APPROVAL

Name:-Marcus Lloyd
Job Title:-Head of Infrastructure & Waste Management

Signature:-

W W\

Date: 19t" June 2023

Page 63



14.

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Appendix 3

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact
Assessment

This integrated impact assessment (llA) has been designed to help support the Council
in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance with a range of
relevant legislation, including:

> Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011

> Socio-economic Duty — Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010

> Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011

> Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

> Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning
Principles

PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if
proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic
decisions.

See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic
Duty Welsh Government Guidance.

PROPOSAL DETAILS

Lead Officer:-RhodriLloyd, Nicole White

Head of Service:-Marcus Lloyd

Service Areaand Department:-Waste Management
Date:-19"June 2023

What is the proposalto be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and
provide a link to any relevant report or documents.

The proposal is to introduce a booking system for residents to gain access to the
network of the Council's Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC)
complimented by sort stipulations for waste and recycling materials.

A booking system would provide the opportunity for our residents to have a
dedicated timeslot at the facility whereby they can dispose and recycle their
household waste, in a controlled and safe environment. We anticipate that this will
provide a much more pleasant experience than what happens presently,as the sites
currently receive traffic on a sometimes chaotic and “free for all’ basis where
impatience, tension and conflict are consequences of residents turning up
unannounced. A booking system offers residents the opportunity to use tipping
facilities in a more controlled and safer manner and benefit from preplanned
assistance (to be provided by our site attendants). Such an offer has the potential to

Page 64


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

eradicate traffic build ups outside of the facilities too. Traffic flows should be much
more fluid and time slots will enable more sustainable vehicle movements to and
from our network of facilities.

A booking system will also help control the misuse of our sites. At present we
suspect a significant proportion of site users are traders/builders/landscape
gardeners and many other trades people that arrive in unmarked vehicles due to the
type of waste they present at site and the frequency of their visits. Currently, staff
turn away people on a daily basis if they are not CCBC residents using the pproof of
residency checking system A booking system should be able to control this level of
misuse significantly which in turn provides more tipping opportunities for our
householders. In addition, and despite our endeavour on checking proof of
residency with the resource we have available, there are a significant number of non
CCBC residents slipping through the net. Moreover, given the decision by many of
our neighbouring Councils to implement 3 and or 4 weekly collections we anticipate
a considerable influx of cross border traffic at our HWRC’s especially those sites
bordering Blaenau Gwent (Rhymney, Penmaen & Full Moon) who have confirmed a
four-weekly residual waste (refuse) collection. A booking system will help us ensure
we are not taking household waste from other council areas, and in turn help
improve our recovery rate performance against other local authorities using data
evidenced and collected through Waste Data Flow.

In deflecting the rogue commercial element from our sites (these groups will be
politely directed to more appropriate private sector outlets/skip hire providers) we
anticpate that the Authority’s residual waste tonnage will decrease. The requirement
to pre-sort will reduce residual waste tonnage and increase recycling, which will ve
evidenced in our quarterly Waste Data Flow. Presently, our waste composition
contains a significant amount of difficult to recover/reprocess i.e. material which is
not of a household nature and this is increasing the risks of the Authority failing to
achieve government recycling targets. Controlling misuse by introducing a booking
system will help inthis regard whilst at the same time increasing the opportunities for
our residents.

It is proposed that Residents will be able to book a slot in one of the following ways:
i) on-line
i) making an appointment to visit a Customer Service Centre by telephoning 01443
866571.

Customer Service Centre opening hours:

Monday - Hanbury Chapel — 09:30 — 15:15 last appointment
Tuesday - Caerphilly — 09:30 — 15:45 last appointment
Wednesday - Ty Penallta - 09:30 — 16:15 last appointment
Thursday - Blackwood - 09:30 — 15:45 last appointment
Friday - Risca - 09:30 — 15:15 last appointment

Residents will need to use these facilities during normal opening hours (Monday-
Friday) if they wish to book a slot for the weekend.

Page 65



N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Local Authorities across the country operate booking systems for access to their
HWRC facilities and more have implemented such systems in 2020 and many
Authorities in the region all have heaped praise on this method.

The introduction of a booking system would ensure greater control over site usage. If
a site was closed for essential maintenance this could be reflected in the system and
if the site must close unexpectedly, we would be able to contact residents and offer
alternative options. It would also provide the Authority with the opportunity to
communicate with residents prior to their arrival on site. This could include informing
residents of the latest site rules/safety measures and advise them on good recycling
and sorting practice. In the same way as assisted kerbside collections operate, the
booking system would allow the service teams to identify those protected groups
who may require additional support. In turn, our sites can be pre-notified of residents
in need of assistance with unloading, especially for people with protected
characteristics. Residents would be communicated with in their preferred language
which they would have advised during the initial booking and only if they gave
permissions initially to be contacted regarding their booking.

The Authority has received requests and recommendations from service users for a
booking system. The general consensus of this feedback is that a booking system
would alleviate queue times, ease congestion and enhance the user experience.

Residents that are not digitally enabled or unable to make a booking online for any
reason will still be able to call the contact centre to make a booking using their
language preference. Our team of customer service advisors will be able to process
their information

Pre-sort requirements at the HWRC
In order to improve our performance, we recognise that we have to reconfigure the
layouts of our HWRC sites to make it:

) easier to recycle and

i) i) more difficult to throw everything into the general waste skip.

Providing more skip containers for a wider range of recyclable materials (carpets,
mattresses etc.) will help to facilitate more recovery activity. In tandem with this
refinement, implementing a policy for pre-sorting waste will help us achieve better
recovery rates. Pre-sorting requirements would be stipulated at the appointment
booking stage and site attendants would verify that residents, on arrival, had pre-
sorted their waste before being allowed to proceed to the HWRC tipping points. If
residents have not pre-sorted their waste they will be asked to return at another time
once their waste has been sorted as the time slot will not allow for sorting of waste.
The length of time slots will be monitored and adjusted if needed. Also worth noting
that following a recent review of the service by WRAP options are being considered
whereby sorting facilities are installed at the sites (as offered by sites in other
Council areas in the region).

Page 66



15.

2a

(iv)

(vi)

2b

(iv)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EQUALITY ACT 2010 (STATUTORY DUTIES) (WALES) REGULATIONS 2011
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the
need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance

equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between
different groups). Please note that an individual may have more than one protected
characteristics.

Age (people of all ages)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Positive:-

The booking system offers a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are able
to use the facility in a safe and user-friendly environment.

The booking system also enables the Authority to alert the waste team to any older
people needing assistance with unloading at the facility which can then allow our site
staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

The requirement to pre-sort waste could have a negative impact on older residents
who have never been required to do this before. However, this would be stipulated at
the booking stage. This will ensure the waste team are alerted prior to the resident
attending the site allowing our site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their age. Assistance from site
staff will be provided to users regardless of their age as required

Disability (people with disabilities/long term conditions)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Positive:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment

Page 67


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

(v)

(vi)

2C

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

2d

(iv)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

The booking system also enables the Authority to alert the waste team to any
residents with a disability needing assistance with unloading at the facility which can
then allow our site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

The requirement to pre-sort waste could have a negative impact on those with a
disability if they are physically unable to do this. However, this would be stipulated at
the booking stage. This will ensure the waste team are alerted prior to the resident
attending the site allowing our site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of their
disability.

Gender Reassignment (anybody who’s gender identity or gender expression is

different to the sex they were assigned at birth)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-
The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.

Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of their
gender reassignment.

Marriage or Civil Partnership (people who are married or in a civil partnership)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment

Page 68



(v)

(vi)

2e

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of
marriage/civil partnership.

Pregnancy and Maternity (women who are pregnant and/or on maternity leave)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system offers an opportunity for an individual to book a timeslot
whereby they are able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

The system also enables the Authority to alert the waste team to any residents in this
grouping needing assistance with unloading at the facility which can then allow our
site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.

Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of
pregnancy and maternity.

Page 69



2f

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

29

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

2h

(iv)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Race (people from black, Asian and minority ethnic communities and different racial
backgrounds)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of race.

Religion or Belief (people with different religions and beliefs including people with no

beliefs)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their age. Assistance from site
staff will be provided if required to users regardless of religion or belief.

Sex (women and men, girls and boys and those who self-identify their gender)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

Page 70



(v)

(vi)

2i

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of sex.

Sexual Orientation (lesbian, gay, bisexual, heterosexual, other)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristic.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of sexual
orientation.

Page 71



16.

3a

(iv)
(v)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY)

(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put
tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making. Socio-economic

disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or

no accumulated wealth, leadingto greater material deprivation, restricting the ability
to access basic goods and services)

Please consider these additional vulnerable group and the impact your
proposal may or may not have on them:

» Single parents and vulnerable families

» People with low literacy/numeracy

» Pensioners

» Looked after children

» Homeless people

» Carers

» Armed Forces Community

» Students

» Single adult households

» People misusing substances

» People who have experienced the asylum system

» People of all ages leaving a care setting

» People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)
» People involved in the criminal justice system

Low Income / Income Poverty (cannot afford to maintain regular payments such as bills,
food, clothing, transport etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

The service offer is designed to have significant positive benefits for our service
users, and whilst the facilities are not currently used by a significant portion of our
population, all residents will experience an indirect positive impact as the financial
burden on the department and the Authority lessens. Ultimately, leading to
improvements in more efficient disposal operations. This will be achieved through
the authority avoiding fines from Welsh Government for not achieving recycling
targets. As state above we anticipate recycling to increase which will allow us to
avoid substantial financial penalties.

Page 72


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx

(Vi)

(vii)

3b

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

3c

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of their income. Although
residents must be aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local Libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council’'s customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Low and/or No Wealth (enough money to meet basic living costs and pay bills but have no
savings to deal with any unexpected spends and no provisions for the future)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of their wealth. However,
residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Material Deprivation (unable to access basic goods and services i.e. financial products like
life insurance, repair/replace broken electrical goods, warm home, hobbies etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
NA

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to any individual regardless of material deprivation. Although
residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a

booking can be made in person at one of the council's customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Page 73



3d

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

3e

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

3f

(iv)

(v)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Area Deprivation (where you live (rural areas), where you work (accessibility of public
transport) Impact on the environment?

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the following and
how?

As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of area deprivation. Although
residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive t0’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council’'s customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Socio-economic Background (social class i.e. parents education, employment and
income)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the following and
how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to any individual regardless of socio-economic background.
Residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council’'s customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Socio-economic Disadvantage (What cumulative impact will the proposal have on people
or groups because of their protected characteristic(s) or vulnerability or because they are
already disadvantaged)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the following and
how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

Page 74



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

(vi) What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of socio-economic
disadvantage. Residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council’'s customer first outlets

Page 75



cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CORPORATE PLAN — COUNCIL’S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES

(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being
Objectives? Whichin turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as
outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any
Impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative impacts how have these
been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all

The requirement to pre-sort will educate people how to sustainably manage their
waste rather than placing everything into a black bag and taking it to site

Objective 2 - Enabling employment

The proposal includes a new staffing structure, which will look at appointing
additional staff who will focus on digitalisation, health and safety and performance in
recovery rates.

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout
the county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s
well-being

N/A

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that
Increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impact on the
environment

N/A

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy lifestyle in accordance with
the Sustainable Development principle within the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015

This will be achieved by an education campaign to advise residents of the need to be
sustainable in the way they deal with their products that would previously have been
considered waste by promoting reduce, reuse and recycle.

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being

A booking system offers the opportunity to use HWRC facilities in a more controlled
and safer manner and benefit from preplanned assistance (to be provided by our site
attendants).

In the same way as assisted kerbside collections operate, the booking system would
allow for the service teams to identify those protected groups who may require
additional support. In turn our sites can be pre-notified of those in need of assistance
with unloading especially for those groups with protected characteristics notably the
elderly, infirm, pregnant categories and other persons who have highlighted a specific
need.

Page 76


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx

4a.

18.

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Links to any other relevant Council Policy (How does your proposal deliver against
any other relevant Council Policy)

Waste Strategy
Decarbonisation
Well-being Plan
Corporate Plan

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — The Five Ways of Working (ALSO
KNOWN AS THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES. THE ACT
REQUIRES THE COUNCIL TO CONSIDER HOW ANY PROPOSAL IMPROVES
THE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL, ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL WELL-BEING OF
WALES USING THE FIVE WAYS OF WORKING AS A BASELINE)

How have you used the Sustainable Development Principlesin forming the proposal?

Long Term

Long term, the proposals will have a positive impact on service users. A booking
system gathers information on the demographic profile allowing us to assess details
such as protected characteristics if they will impact on the way we deliver the service
in the future, and residential location of the service users, that will allow us to shape
our facilities, refine and improve site layouts as well planning resources to assist
those residents who may require special assistance. It could ultimately help us with
profiling waste compositions and planning sustainable waste management initiatives.
We regularly undertake independent compositional analysis surveys and report
regularly using the statutory Waste Data Flow collection which will help us achieve
this.

Such monitoring will allow us to target resources and provide bespoke solutions for
different groups of people in our communities and help make the waste department
become a smarter, more responsive and more citizen focussed service provider.
This could mean providing extra support for people who are digitally excluded,
monitoring trends and gaging feedback, tailoring the service to allow staff to help
people on site.

The proposal will support and encourage better waste and recycling practices inthe
long term, and change people’s way of thinking for future generations. The
requirement to pre-sort will educate people in better waste management practices and
encouraging them not to put everything in the general waste. The volume of waste
coming into the sites will be reduced through reduction in footfall and discouraging
traders and commercial enterprises from using the sites. Ultimately, this will allow us
to work towards a Circular Economy, reduce carbon footprint and become more
resource efficient. More enforcement presence will tackle fly tipping issues.

Page 77


https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Prevention

The benefit of a booking system is that service users can inform staff prior to their visit
of any assistance they may require. Assistance can then be provided immediately
when the service user arrives at the site avoiding any unnecessary stress/anxiety that
may have occurred if staff were unaware prior to the visit.

Integration
All the relevant waste services will become more integrated with the use of
appropriate technology becoming a more responsive and resident focussed.

Collaboration
The system will work closely with our customer services/contact centre. The customer

services department will be the initial point of contact for the service user where the
relevant information will be obtained in order to create the booking.

Involvement
As part of the waste strategy consultation process (see section 9)

Page 78



19.

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

Does the proposal maximiseour contribution to the Well-being
Goals and how?

A Prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of the global
environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately (including acting on
climate change); and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an economy
which generates wealth and provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take
advantage of the wealth generated through securing decent work

The proposal will support Wales in being a ‘prosperous society’ by encouraging more
sustainable waste management and recycling practices. This will be achieved
through the encouragement of recycling and reducing reliance on residual disposal
methods such as Energy from Waste/Landfill. Supporting the Welsh Government’s
Circular Economy, reducing carbon footprint and becoming more resource efficient.

We anticipate a booking system will greatly reduce congestion and the volume of
traffic inand around the sites by controlling the number of visitors at any given time.
This will allow us to avoid an influx of people at the site time. Thus, reducing
localised air pollution and reducing Carbon Dioxide emissions through queuing
vehicles.

The proposal will support and provide good quality jobs, inturn supporting the local
economy through the development of local skills and providing training.

Resilient Wales

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment healthy
functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological resilience and
the capacity to adapt to change (for climate change.

The pre-sort proposal will support and help us work towards a Circular Economy by
increasing recycling and reducing the volume of general waste entering the sites .
Initiating this project now is the beginning of us working towards Zero Waste by 2050
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in resource use. This
in turn will support biodiversity, which is significantly impacted during the extraction
of resources for the products we consume.

A Healthier Wales

A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in
which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood

The proposal will encourage and provide employment opportunities, which in turn will
benefit people’s lifestyles and their mental and physical well-being. It will also
provide training for staff to increase their knowledge and provide them the tools they
need for potential career progression in the future.

Page 79


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

By providing controlled and safe facilities reducing tension, conflict and queuing will
hopefully provide a less stressful experience for residents.

A More Equal Wales

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their background
or circumstances (including their socio-economic background and circumstances)

The proposal will support people and our communities by providing employment for
people from all backgrounds. Everyone has the opportunity to book a slot, whether
that be in person, over the telephone or online. We can then offer special assistance
to those who require it by assisting them when they’re on site, ultimately leading to an
equal service for all.

A Wales of Cohesive Communities
Aftractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities

The proposal will help connect the Authority with the local community through
collaborative working, face to face engagement, education etc, whilst also providing
additional employment opportunities.

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, and
which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and recreation

The proposal will comply with the Welsh Language Measure 2011 in all aspects of
education, engagement, communication etc. The proposalis fully compliant with the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and associated Welsh Language Standards
and encourages any service users to speak their first language (where Welsh, English
or any other).

- The booking system will be bilingual and residents will have the opportunity to
state their language preference

- We have staff within the department who are able to converse in Welsh
whether that be by phone, text or email

- The paperwork (booking confirmation) will be available in both English and
Welsh.

A Globally Responsible Wales

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, environmental
and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may
make a positive contribution to global well-being

The booking system and supplementary pre-sort requirement will support and help
us work towards a Circular Economy and become a more globally responsible
Wales. Initiating this project now is the beginning of us working towards Welsh
Government’'s Towards Zero Waste Strategy, which aims to achieve zero waste by
2050 and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in resource use

Page 80



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

and increasing recycling. This in turn will support biodiversity, which is significantly
impacted during the extraction of resources for the products we consume.

Page 81



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

20. WELSHLANGUAGE (WALES) MEASURE 2011 AND WELSH LANGUAGE

Page 82



7a.

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

7b.

(iv)

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

STANDARDS

(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the
Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative impact a proposal may have
on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is
treated no less favourably than the English language) Policy Making Standards -
Good Practice Advice Document

Links with Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s Five Year
Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027 and the Language Profile

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Neutral - All signage at Household Waste Recycling Centres will be bilingual. In
addition to communication through social media platforms, internet, council website,
leaflets, online booking systems, telephone booking systems etc which will all be
bilingual.

The department is committed to complying with the requirements of the Welsh
Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and as a matter of course issues, all its
communications bilingually. The department has a significant proportion of Welsh
speakers across all tiers and are able to communicate both verbally and in the
written form to queries and service requests. The department supports all the Welsh
Government sustainable waste campaigns all of which are include bilingual narrative
and branding. The Waste team supports the National Be Mighty campaign, which is
aiming for Wales to become the top recycling nation in the world.

The booking system service will be communicated through all media platforms in
Welsh and thereby support the above commitments.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
There will be no negative impact on the Welsh language.

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards. Specifically Standards 88—93

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Positive - All signage at Household Waste Recycling Centres will be bilingual. In
addition to communication through social media platforms, internet, council website,
leaflets, online booking systems, telephone booking systems etc which will all be
bilingual.

Page 83


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/appendix-b-menter-iaith-caerffili-welsh-language-p.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx

(v)

(vi)

7c.

(i)

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
There will be no negative impacts on the Welsh language.

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20, LDP,
Pupil Level Annual School Census

Opportunities to promote the Welsh language e.g. status, use of Welsh language
services, use of Welsh in everyday life in work / community

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

The service once in place will need to be communicated, making it clear that the
service is available in Welsh. This will encourage Welsh speakers to actively
engage in their preferred language should that be Welsh.

We will ensure that those requiring support to be delivered in Welsh are in no way
discriminated against. The service will always be delivered using the service users
preferred language.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,

LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7d. Opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language e.g. staff, residents
and visitors

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

As above
If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,

LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7e. Treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English
language

Page 84



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

21.

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

All communication, signage and information on the website will be available in
English and Welsh. This will allow the service user to read/access information in their
chosen language.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A
What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,

LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed
so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a)
opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and (b) treating the
Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

The service will be fully compliant with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure
2011/Welsh language standards which will allow and encourage our service users to
access information in their preferred language, whether that be English or Welsh.

DATA AND INFORMATION

(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the
proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, existing
databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or
other service user feedback, national and regional data, academic publications and
consultants’ reports eftc.)

Data/evidence (Please provide link to report if appropriate)

In November/December 2022, the council ran a phase of engagement called ‘What
matters to you?’. 93% of respondents agreed that waste collection and recycling
services should continue to be a priority when planning council services and budgets
for 2022/23 and beyond. Through that same engagement activity, 86% of
respondents felt that waste collection and recycling services was as important or
more important to them than 12 months ago. Insight from the ‘What matters to you?’
phase also suggested that residents appreciate the simplicity of our current recycling
system in place.

In addition, an online ‘quick poll' sought additional views on waste and recycling
during January 2023. Key insights from this poll, which received 2,632 responses
included:

Page 85



COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

e 79% of respondents said they recycle food waste at the kerbside. From those
respondents who don't currently recycle food waste, their reasons for not
doing so were primarily that they compost any food waste, they don’'t waste
any food, they don't like the smellffeel its unclean or they don’'t have any liners
to place inside the caddy.

e 99% of respondents said they regularly recycle using their brown bin/recycling
box/recycling bags at the kerbside

e 73% of respondents said they regularly make use of the green/garden waste
recycling service. From those respondents who don't, their reasons for not
doing so were primarily that they don’t have any garden waste/a garden or
that they use the service but seasonally (not year-round)

Summary reports for the ‘What matters to you?” November/December 2022
engagement phase and the ‘Caerphilly Conversation — budget setting 2023/24’
engagement programme can be found at
www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

In 2021 a corporate Snap survey was conducted with the public to introduce a trial
booking system for the HWRCs.

Key relevant findings

Overall, the findings suggest that the public do not want change. The service is easy
and convenient for a large majority of our residents and they are happy with the way
things are. However, we are always looking at ways to improve our services and we
need change to ensure the Authority remains financially stable now and in the future.
Making changes now will secure this for the Authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The Welsh National Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste was launched on 21 June
2010. The strategy set out a series of challenging statutory recycling targets
for Local Authorities to deliver. These are as outlined below:

201012 [ 1213 | 15116 | 19/20 | 24/25

Min. levels of reuse & 40% 52% 58% 64% 70%
recycling/composting (or

AD)

Min. proportion of 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

reuse/recycling/composting
from source separation*

Max. level of landfill - - 10% 5%

Max. level of energy from - - 42% 36% 30%
waste



http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

Min. levels of preparing for | - 0.4% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0%
reuse (excluding Waste

Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE))

5.2  Caerphilly’s recycling performance is outlined below alongside the Welsh
Government statutory targets. As Graph 1 illustrates, Caerphilly has
historically performed well against Welsh Government targets however, over
the last 3 years recycling performance has declined. Performance for 2019/20
of 62.51%, 2020/21 of 61.90%, and 2021/22 of 59% al fell below the statutory
target of 64%.

Recycling Trends

80.00% 64%
70.00% 65.50% 6670% 65.10%
61.90% 61.90% 50.67%
57.07% 57.61% 54.60% R 70%
55.91%
— 60.00%
x 51.38% 62.50%
3 50.00% 44.03%
< 58%
o
;1:040'00%’ 32.34% 52%
g_ 30.00%
Q
& 20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
& » N g > A $ o ) o2 o D > v W > "
RO R I MR S S A (O S G AR
) A D I I A S U A S O
Financial Year
Statutory Target Recycling Rate

Through the Waste (Wales) Measure 2010, the Welsh Government (WG) made
recycling targets from 2012-13 and beyond, statutory targets. This status allows
Welsh Government to levy financial penalties against Council’s that fail to achieve
them. The statutory targets are weight based and increased gradually over time. In
the current national Welsh Government waste strategy “Beyond Recycling - A
Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality’, the Welsh Government
has stated they will work with Local Authorities and other key partners

to develop further future recycling targets in line with their pathway to zero waste,
with the aim of achieving 100% recycling by 2050. Welsh Government

indicate that they will put in place further minimum statutory recycling targets for
Local Authorities beyond 2025, potentially at a level of 80%

by 2033.

Page 87



22.

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

How has the data/evidence informed this proposal?

The results of the survey reflect that the service is of high importance and the public
recognise this. This initiative facilitates better performance and supports the
financial stability of the authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The data/evidence has shaped the strategy and this proposal in its entirety.

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this
proposal and how will these gaps be filled? Details of further consultation can be
included in Section 9.

An external consultant has worked alongside the council to develop a series of
behaviour change proposals with the aim of identifying gaps in current levels of
understanding amongst the community. This has shaped the communication
strategy for this proposal.

CONSULTATION

(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where
there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from people that a
consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is
required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to. Consider the Consultation
and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as
the proposal develops and to strengthen the assessment.

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular
attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles.

Integral to the above service options is the undertaking of a public consultation on
the proposals. It is proposed that this will be delivered within a 6 week timescale and
will utilise a range of systems to ensure that the consultation process is fair,
equitable and representative. It is proposed that this will commence shortly after
Cabinet have considered and made decisions based on the report
recommendations. The public consultation is proposed to run January 2024.
Residents will be invited to give their views in a variety of ways:

e A survey will be available onthe council’'s website www.caerphilly.gov.uk. It will
be available online and in printed copy. Hard copies will be available from all
libraries across the county borough and returned via libraries or through the
post.

Page 88


https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

e A series of informal face-to-face drop-in sessions for residents will be arranged
at libraries across the borough. Three online face-to-face sessions will also be
scheduled. As far as possible, these sessions will be held on different days of
the week and different times of the day, including early evening, to enable as
many people as possible to attend. They will also be planned to coincide with
times of highest footfall at individual libraries.

e A dedicated meeting of the Viewpoint Panel. The Viewpoint Panel is a group of
residents who are regularly invited to get involved in the council’s engagement
and consultation activities. Anyone who is a resident of the county borough can
join.

¢ Online engagement opportunities through the council’s new digital engagement
platform

e Targeted engagement with stakeholders and seldom heard groups -
identification of these was supported through the development of in-depth
integrated impact assessments (llAs) for the draft proposals.

The Authority has been in active dialogue with the waste sector about booking
systems. A communications plan has been drafted to compliment the proposed offer
and it follows that we envisage that the new service offer would follow the same
process as that of the proof of residency initiative.ie. pre-communications on all media
platforms, issue of literature at sites, site signage notifying of pending service initiative
complimented by face-to-face dialogue between users and waste officers at the
network of facilities.

It is important to note that approximately only one fifth of the population use our “drive
to” sites. Most residents rely on the range of regular recycling and refuse collections
and the bulky collection by request services. A significant number of residents also
employ the services of private waste contractors and skip hire operators to manage
their wastes generated from construction DIY and gardening projects. Undertaking a
site user survey at this moment would not be reliable as it would be very susceptible
to bias because of the amount of “non-householder” traffic having a say where they
are not entitled. In the same vein consulting the majority of the public on facilities they
do not benefit from is of litte relevance or use to us in this particular service
development. However, a survey at a subsequent time when we have gathered
information on residents booking contact details would enable us to consult more
effectively and garner more accurate and relevant feedback for us to use and reshape
the service.

Who was consulted?
When we talk about engaging our communities and stakeholders we make a
commitment to engage, as appropriate, with:

¢ Residents — people from every part of the county borough and from every

community and of all ages, making a particular effort to encourage those not
currently engaged/seldom heard including:

Page 89



N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

o Community groups and clubs including those on our various panels,
community, voluntary and special interest groups
o Users of specific council services
o Vulnerable groups and those with protected characteristics as identified
within the Equality Act (2010) and the Public Sector Equality Duty
(Wales)
o Children and young people including those on the Youth and Junior
Forums
Employees of the council
Relevant trade unions
Business owners/business forums
Those who visit, work or participate in activities within the county borough
Our democratically elected representatives
Town and Community Councils
Members of the Senedd and Members of Parliament
Partner organisations
Welsh Commissioners (Children’s, Welsh Language, Older Persons, Future
Generations)
Specific subject forums
e Any other body or group with an interest in the work of the authority and the
future wellbeing of the area

An extensive engagement strategy has also been developed to support this proposal.

When they were consulted did the consultation take place at the formative
stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond?

Consultation is being carried out in line with the gunning principles at the formative
stage.

Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an
informed decision on the proposal?

Consultation is being carried out in line with the gunning principles at the formative
stage.

What were the key findings?

These will be identified during the period of consultation.

Page 90



23.

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

How have the consultation findings been taken into account?

Following the 6 week consultation period, the findings wil be analysed and reported
back to members and the public.this will enable members to make an informed
decision on the basis of what our residents have told us.

MONITORING AND REVIEW

How will the implementation and the impact of the proposal be monitored,
including implementation of any amendments?

It is important to reiterate that the HWRC sites are “drive to & drive through” facilities
and thus they automatically exclude a major proportion of the County Borough's
populace. A booking system though gathers information on the demographic profile
and we will be able to assess age, residential location and other customer information
that could also help us to shape facilities, refine and improve site layouts as well
planning resources to assist those residents who may require special assistance. It
could ultimately help us with profiling waste compositions and planning sustainable
waste management initiatives. The information will be provided by the resident at the
time of booking if they wish to disclose this, for example they may wish to disclose
they are elderly and need special assistance.

Such monitoring will allow us to target resources and provide bespoke solutions for
respective groupings in our communities and help make the waste department
become a smarter, more responsive and more citizen focussed service provider. This
could mean providing extra support for those persons that are less digitally focussed.

What are the practical arrangements for monitoring?

The overarching aim of the changes is to improve the facilities for service users,
secure the financial stability of the authority, increase recycling/recovery rates and
reduce the overall volume of residual waste entering the HWRCs. The introduction of
an appointment service to access the HWRC sites complimented by the introduction
of pre-sort requirements is estimated to achieve an increase in recovery rates of up
to 3%. This figure will be monitored based on data captured in Waste Data Flow.

How will the results of the monitoring be used to develop future proposals?
Any monitoring measures that are introduced will be revisited on a regular basis to
ensure the implementation is successful or not, as well as capturing any data
needed, or improving the service delivery. Data will be captured through Waste Data
Flow

Information/data received will be analysed and used to form future commissioning
decisions.

Page 91



24.

25.

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

When is the proposal due to be reviewed?

The proposal will be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure the proposals are
having the desired effect. Data will be collected through Waste Data Flow.

Who is responsible for ensuring this happens?
Rhodri Lloyd
HRC Supervisors

RECOMMENDATION AND REASONING (delete as applicable)

e Implement proposal with no amendments

e Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined

e Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and
socio-economic disadvantage

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? (delete as

applicable)
e Yes

REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be
included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” section of the Corporate
Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the
Report proposal).

To ensure Caerphilly is able to achieve the required Welsh Government statutory
Recycling target of 70% in 2024/25.

To ensure Caerphilly is best placed to move beyond the required 2024/25 recycling

target of 70% in subsequent years and be best placed to work towards the zero waste
Welsh Government aspiration.

Page 92



26.

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

VERSION CONTROL

(The 1A should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.
The IlA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the proposal. The
Version Control section will actas an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been
developed over time) (Add or delete versions as applicable)

Version 1

Author:-Rhodri Lloyd & Nicole White
Brief description of the amendments/update: -

Revision Date:-19t" June 2023

Page 93



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT AUTHOR
Name:-RhodriLloyd
Job Title:-Principal Waste Management Officer
Date:-19'" June 2023

HEAD OF SERVICE APPROVAL

Name:-Marcus Lloyd
Job Title:-Head of Infrastructure & Waste Management

Signature:-

W W\

Date: 19t" June 2023

Page 94



	Agenda
	3 Map Llwybr i Hysbysu Ein Strategaeth Adnoddau a Gwastraff.

